
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

MAY 18, 2009 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The Acting City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 

 



NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

May 18, 2009 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Randy Vinson – Bridge 

Community Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Service Commendation Presented by Mayor Schilling to Linda Thielfoldt – 
Homes for Our Troops .......................................................................................... 1 

b) Development Plans for the Troy Museum and Historic Village – 10-Minute 
Presentation by Museum Manager Loraine Campbell.......................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Harlan Shopping Plaza, North Side of Wattles, West of 
John R, Section 14 – B-1 to B-3 (File Number Z-736) 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Postponed Items 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:   None 
Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Historic District Commission; and 
Historic District Study Committee 2 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations:  Historic District 
Commission 3 

E-3 Rescind/Re-Award Contract – Hauling & Disposal, Item #4) Catch Basin Sludge 
and Street Sweepings – Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4b 4 

E-4 Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Easement for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 and 
Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 and 
Request for Authorization to Institute Court Action – Safeway Acquisition 
Company, LLC, Safeway Oil Company, Inc. DHW, Inc., and Alsaham, Inc., DBA 
Fred’s Auto Service Center – Parcel 19 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-044 4 

E-5 Approval of the 2009-2010 Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Budget 5 

E-6 Approval of the 2009-2010 Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Budget 6 

E-7 Bid Waiver – Troy Community Center Strength Equipment Purchase 6 

CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 7 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 7 

a) Service Commendation – Homes for Our Troops ................................................ 8 



 

 

   

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 8 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Overhead Door 
Maintenance and Repair ...................................................................................... 8 

F-5 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 
County 8 

F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License Only to Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited 
Partnership 8 

F-7 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status – Mark Wolodkowicz, 
President and Program Director for Free Desire, Inc. 9 

F-8 Schedule a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Public Input on the City of 
Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William 
Beaumont Hospital 9 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 10 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 10 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 10 

H-1 American Public Works Association Voluntary Accreditation 10 

H-2 City of Farmington – Abandoned Residential Property Registration Ordinance 10 

H-3 Tree Ordinance – Private Property Issues 10 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 10 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 10 

REPORTS: 10 



 

 

   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 

a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 1, 2009 .............. 10 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 1, 2009 .............. 10 
c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 2, 2009 ............................ 10 

d) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 28, 2009 ............................... 10 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 5, 2009 ................................. 10 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 5, 2009 ................................. 10 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 6, 2009 ........................................ 10 

J-2 Department Reports: 10 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued April 2009 .............................................. 10 
b) Police Department – 2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report .......... 10 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 10 

a) Letter of Commendation to Lt. Dave Livingston from Jon Pascal, Krav Maga 
Worldwide-Force Training Division Regarding the Professionalism and 
Commitment of Officer Dan Langbeen ............................................................... 10 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 10 

J-5 Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Non-Profit Group Meeting Room Policy at the Community Center 11 

STUDY ITEMS: 11 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 11 

CLOSED SESSION: 11 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 11 

ADJOURNMENT 11 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 11 

Monday, June 1, 2009 ............................................................................................. 11 
1. Receiving Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority 

Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital (pending 
approval) ............................................................................................................ 11 



 

 

   

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, June 1, 2009 Regular City Council ......................................................... 12 
Monday, June 15, 2009 Regular City Council ....................................................... 12 

Monday, July 6, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................... 12 
Monday, July 20, 2009 Regular City Council ......................................................... 12 
Monday, August 3, 2009 Regular City Council ...................................................... 12 
Monday, August 17, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 12 
Monday, August 31, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 12 

Monday, September 14, 2009 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, September 28, 2009 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, October 5, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 12 
Monday, October 19, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................. 12 
Monday, November 9, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 12 

Monday, November 23, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 12 

Monday, December 7, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 12 

Monday, December 21, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 12 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Randy Vinson – Bridge 

Community Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

  
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Service Commendation Presented by Mayor Schilling to Linda Thielfoldt – Homes for 
Our Troops  

b) Development Plans for the Troy Museum and Historic Village – 10-Minute Presentation 
by Museum Manager Loraine Campbell 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Harlan Shopping Plaza, North Side of Wattles, West of 

John R, Section 14 – B-1 to B-3 (File Number Z-736) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from B-1 to B-3, File Number Z-736, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Certificate of Survey;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from B-1 to B-3; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:   None 

Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Historic District Commission; and 

Historic District Study Committee 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled  
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
Murial Rounds Term Expires 05/15/2012 

 

Historic District Study Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 
Leslie Golden Witt- Historical Society Recommendation Ad Hoc 

 
Yes: 
No: 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations:  Historic District 

Commission 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – None Scheduled  
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 

Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 05/15/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Rescind/Re-Award Contract – Hauling & Disposal, Item #4) Catch Basin Sludge 

and Street Sweepings – Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4b 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On April 20, 2009, one-year contracts to provide Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and 
Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded on an item by item 
basis to the low bidders: Ahern Contracting, Inc. of Chesterfield, MI, for Item #1) Broken 
concrete; Bedrock Maintenance Services of Ortonville, MI, Items 2) Broken asphalt and #3) Fill 
Dirt; and Metropolitan Demolition of Romulus, MI, Item #4) Catch basin and Street sweepings 
(Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, Metropolitan Demolition has not provided the insurance certificate(s) as required 
after numerous attempts by City Management;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to provide Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris under Item# 4) Catch basin and 
Street sweepings, with an option to renew for one (1) additional year from Metropolitan 

Demolition, and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next lowest acceptable bidder, Waste 
Management of Michigan, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 13, 2009, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract 
expiring March 31, 2010; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Easement for 

Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 and 

Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 and 

Request for Authorization to Institute Court Action – Safeway Acquisition 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

Company, LLC, Safeway Oil Company, Inc. DHW, Inc., and Alsaham, Inc., DBA 

Fred’s Auto Service Center – Parcel 19 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-044 
 

(a) Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the proposed Rochester Road Improvements, between 
Torpey and Barclay, and Wattles Road Improvements, between Bristol and Worthington, it is 
necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from Safeway Acquisition Company, 
LLC, Safeway Oil Company, Inc., DHW, Inc., and Alsaham, Inc., DBA Fred’s Auto Service 
Center, owners and interested parties of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-044; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate and 
Development Department to make an Unconditioned Offer to acquire the parcel known as 
Sidwell #88-20-23-100-044 in the amount of $1,440,000.00 for real estate and $21,825.00 for 
fixtures. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) Authorization to Institute Court Action 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the Rochester Road Improvements, between Torpey and 
Barclay, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from Safeway Acquisition 
Company, LLC, Safeway Oil Company, Inc., DHW, Inc., and Alsaham, Inc., DBA Fred’s Auto 
Service Center, owners and interested parties of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-044; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney, if 
necessary, to institute condemnation litigation and to execute and deliver any and all 
documents and papers, and to expend necessary funds expedient for the prosecution of such 
proceedings or settlement of such claims on proceedings by and with the express approval of 
this Council. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Approval of the 2009-2010 Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 

Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Local Development Finance Authority recommended approval of 
the 2009/10 Budget; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the annual 
budget for the Troy Local Development Finance Authority for fiscal year July 1, 2009 
through June 30, 2010. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Approval of the 2009-2010 Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends 
that City Council approve its 2009/10 Budget; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the annual 
budget for the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority for fiscal year July 1, 2009 through 
June 30, 2010. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Bid Waiver – Troy Community Center Strength Equipment Purchase 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Community Center has purchased numerous pieces of Matrix fitness 
equipment from All-Pro Exercise of Farmington Hills;  
 
WHEREAS, The City has determined Matrix equipment to be of commercial grade quality and 
favored by users of the Community Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, All-Pro Exercise is the only authorized Matrix dealer in the State of Michigan with a 
local service facility providing both preferred customer and freight discounts, and the only 
supplier to offer a trade-in for the Keiser equipment; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase seven (7) pieces of Matrix strength 
equipment from All Pro Exercise of Farmington Hills at an estimated total cost of $16,000.00 
including trade-ins, as detailed on the quotation dated April 30, 2009.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 

and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:00 PM Special 
City Council Meeting of April 16, 2009 as corrected, and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of May 11, 2009 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a) Service Commendation – Homes for Our Troops 
  

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Overhead Door 

Maintenance and Repair               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all necessary 
materials, labor and equipment to provide three-year requirements of repairs and general 
maintenance of overhead doors to the low total bidder, Michigan Independent Door Company 
of Troy, Michigan, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 23, 2009, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, to expire May 31, 2012; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 

F-5 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to pay the renewal of City of 
Troy’s membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2009, in the amount of 
$24,400.00 and funds are available in the 2008-2009 Traffic Engineering budget, Account 
Number 443.7958. 
 

F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License Only to Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited 

Partnership 
 

(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited Partnership, to transfer ownership of Escrowed 2008 SDD 
license only from Whole Foods Market Group, Inc.; and transfer location from 4052 Rochester 
to 2001 W Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County to be held on conjunction with existing 
SDM license; {MLCC Req. ID # 490232}; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS issuance of this 
license. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited Partnership, to transfer ownership of Escrowed 2008 SDD 
license only from Whole Foods Market Group, Inc.; and transfer location from 4052 Rochester 
to 2001 W Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County to be held in conjunction with existing SDM 

license; {MLCC Req. ID # 490232}; and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status – Mark Wolodkowicz, 

President and Program Director for Free Desire, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Free Desire, Inc., 
asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the 
purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City Management. 
 

F-8 Schedule a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Public Input on the City of 

Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William 

Beaumont Hospital  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-05- 
 
WHEREAS, William Beaumont Hospital is anticipating a financing through the City of Royal 
Oak Hospital Financing Authority utilizing tax-exempt bonds;  
 
WHEREAS, The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), requires  
a public hearing before authorizing the issuance of bonds by a hospital authority in all 
jurisdictions benefitting from the issuance; and  
 
WHEREAS, A portion of the proceeds of the bonds will be used to finance the acquisition and 
installation of hospital facility equipment; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a public 
hearing for Monday, June 1, 2009 at 7:30 PM in Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

Big Beaver, Troy, MI  48084 for the purpose of receiving public input on the City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Financing Authority issuing tax-exempt bonds for William Beaumont Hospital. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted    

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 American Public Works Association Voluntary Accreditation 

H-2 City of Farmington – Abandoned Residential Property Registration Ordinance 

H-3 Tree Ordinance – Private Property Issues 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 1, 2009 

b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 1, 2009  

c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 2, 2009 

d) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 28, 2009 

e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 5, 2009  

f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 5, 2009 

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 6, 2009 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  

a) Building Department – Permits Issued April 2009  

b) Police Department – 2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report  
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Commendation to Lt. Dave Livingston from Jon Pascal, Krav Maga Worldwide-
Force Training Division Regarding the Professionalism and Commitment of Officer Dan 
Langbeen  

   

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

J-5 Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Non-Profit Group Meeting Room Policy at the Community Center 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 

or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, June 1, 2009 
1. Receiving Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority 

Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital (pending approval) 
 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 18, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, June 1, 2009 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, June 15, 2009 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, July 6, 2009 ................................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, July 20, 2009 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, August 3, 2009............................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, August 17, 2009.......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, August 31, 2009.......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 14, 2009 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 28, 2009 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 5, 2009 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 19, 2009 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, November 9, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 23, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 7, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 21, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

HOMES FOR OUR TROOPS 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 

WHEREAS, As a non-profit organization founded in 2004, “Homes for Our Troops” is strongly 
committed to helping those men and women who have selflessly given to their country and have 
returned home with serious disabilities and injuries; and  
 
WHEREAS, The organization assists severely injured Servicemen and Women and their immediate 
families by raising donations of money, building materials and professional labor and then 
coordinating the process of building a new home or adapting an existing home for handicapped 
accessibility. The finished home is then given to the veteran by “Homes for Our Troops,” striving to 
welcome them home with honor and respect; and   
 
WHEREAS, Through these efforts “Homes for Our Troops” has furthered those ideals that 
contribute to a better community; and 
 
WHEREAS, “Home for Our Troops” sponsored their 6th Annual Veterans Fundraiser in Troy on May 
9th to raise money for their worthwhile organization to honor local injured veterans; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for the service of this 
distinguished organization.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented to “Homes for Our 
Troops” as a lasting expression of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for its contribution to the 
betterment of the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
Presented this 18th day of May 2009. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 

 
DATE:    May 8, 2009 
 
TO:     Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 
    John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance and Administration 
    Cathy Russ, Library Director 
    Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
    Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Development Plans for the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
 
 
 
City Staff is in the process of formulating plans for the development of the Troy Museum &Historic 
Village with the firm of Hopkins Burns Design Studio, our consultant on the project.  These plans 
include the expansion of the facility on the newly acquired land to the west of the existing facility, as 
well as the relocation of the Niles-Barnard house and a barn/visitor’s center to the facility.  We look 
forward to presenting and sharing those plans with Council at a future City Council meeting. 
 
In the meantime, the current stage of those plans has shown that certain variances from the setback 
provisions for the Barnard house, as well as some expanded parking areas would be required.  
Hopkins Burns has filed an appeal application on our behalf to seek these variances on these items 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals.  This matter will be considered at the Board of Zoning Appeals’ 
meeting scheduled for May 19, 2009.  As part of the rules and procedures of a variance request, 
public hearing notices have been sent to residents and property owners in the area, and the item has 
been published in the Somerset Gazette. 
 
In an effort to keep you informed of the request, we have enclosed a copy of the proposed 
development plans for your reference. Should you have any questions about the plans or should you 
receive any questions from the public regarding the proposed development or the variance request, 
please forward those to staff so that we may address those questions. 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



LOG CABIN                                                            
Relocate on site

BARN BUILDING                                                   
Relocate to site, add additions
Barn - Interpretation
Lobby / Greeting
Gift Shop
Sta� O�ces
Multi-purpose Room
Toilet Rooms

BARNARD HOUSE                                                
Relocate to site 
Basement - Archives (adds 1400 sf )
First Floor - Interpretation 
Second Floor - Historical Society 
O�ces (req. stair alteration)

Accessible Parking

Barn 
Yard

MUSEUM BUILDING                                           
Add addition to provide accessibility 
Basement - Archives (adds 750 sf )
First Floor - Museum  
Second Floor - Archive and Genealogy O�ces 
and Resource Room (1170 sf total)

 Paved Parking

TOWN HALL                                                            
Possible relocation on site

GAZEBO                                                                  
Relocate on site

CHURCH 
Basement - 
Archive

 Bus Turn-around

GENERAL STORE         
Basement - Archive
Second Floor - Archive

Additions
Relocate on site

Relocate to site

 Paved Parking

New Drop-o�

Over�ow/Lawn Parking

PROPOSED PARKING

90 Paved Parking Spaces
30 Over�ow/ Lawn Spaces
120 Total Spaces

EXISTING HOUSE

Paved Parking (Controlled)

50’

15’ 35’

25’

25’

20

30’

50’

Wattles Rd.

Lange Ave.

1”= 50’- 0”

600.72’

498.54’

102.99’

40’

10’

40’ 10’

15’
10’

40’

10’

Li
ve

rn
oi

s 
Rd

.

Property Line Requesting variance to allow for parking 

Requesting 
variance to allow 
for parking 

Requesting variance to allow for parking Requesting variance to allow for Niles-Barnard House 

Property Line

Property 
Line

Property Line

50’ Setback 

37
9.

28
’

14
5.

77
’

23
3.

76
’

40’10’

Requesting 
variance to 
allow for 
Town Hall 



1 

 

 
 
DATE: May 11, 2009 
 
TO: John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Harlan Shopping Plaza, North side of Wattles, 

West of John R, Section 14 – B-1 to B-3 (File Number: Z-736) 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to B-3 at the 
April 14, 2009 Regular meeting (minutes and report attached). 

 
The subject parcel is zoned B-1 Local Commercial and is used for a commercial strip mall.  The 
applicant proposes to make the property more marketable by rezoning to B-3 General Business and 
expanding the range of potential permitted uses on the site, including a learning center.  Abutting 
parcels to the east and west are also zoned commercial, with the property to the east being used as a 
commercial strip mall.  Rezoning the parcel to B-3 would have the effect of expanding the range of 
potential uses for the property, including office uses. 
 
The Master Plan designates a Neighborhood Node at the corner of Wattles and John R 
(Neighborhood Node F).  The Master Plan proposes that the node include high-density residential in 
combination with restaurants, limited office, and retail.  The subject parcel lies within the established 
Neighborhood Node and is presently used for commercial uses.  While the zoning proposed does not 
specifically propose a mixed use development, rezoning the parcel to B-3 expands the range of 
potential uses, including permitting certain types of offices.   
 
City Management Recommendation: 
 
The proposed B-3 district is consistent with the intent of the Master Plan and compatible with abutting 
zoning districts and uses.  City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request to B-3 
General Business. 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



2 

 

Attachments: 
1. Minutes from the April 14, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
2. Planning Commission report dated April 3, 2009. 
3. Public comment. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 736 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-736 Harlan Shopping Plaza Sec 14\CC Public Hearing 05 18 09.docx 



--

lit.K I I r IliA It. ur- \:JUKVt. T 

Certified To: Lydia Hong 

MAR 1: 2009 

Bearings are in relation to the bearings of the \:;l' 


North Line Qf Section 23, as recorded in RAINTREE 

VILLAGE SUB. No.2, as recorded in Liber 139, Pgs. ... 


II>1-2-3, Oakland County ~ecords. "> 

N 

....: 
" 
C) 

C)
-

II 

c:: 
'~ 

l.I.) 

-I 
«: 
(,) 
(J) 

LEGAL 


II> 
c::L o T I .~ 

-.J 

t,j

'..:Found Stake 

(NS8°59'02"W. 229.2~ 
] II ,......--Lot Line .... 11, I 

";::1 
0") "".: LOT 2 I 

'l) ~ OESCR I BED to :=... CJ 
'l) f'...1') PARCEL 'l)••~) .<::(

'I<) 'I.\t :-~'::t,.... N ~,
'::tf'... 

NC) 
 Pad 0 f c-I ~ ~) 

o ~) ~~,LOT 5 ,,;.. r.r) <~ , .ex: ,... 
I"I:! 

c:: LOT 4 LO T .3 '<:: 
'~ 

Found 
E'" , I !Stake 
ct'" \ -5.880 44'56"£. 229.20 ~ 217.8 'e 

i 1 
,.s.o!,J~ 

.... Ex c e pte d S. 2 7 ft. for R 0 a d ~'-.!'- I ___'--' 
c)' I Found..'
~I _ _ S. Line St;..p_14..., sfoke"'s 

WATTLES RD.! 120'WD. S.£.CORN£RJ 
, SECTION 14 

T. 2 N. R.IIE. 

415.8 ft. Record 415,9 ft, Meas ures... 
- N.88° 44'56"W.~ 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 
Lot 5, Except the West 65.0 ft. thereof; also Except the South 27.0 ft. 

taken for the widening of Wattles Road: SUPERVISOR'S PLAT No. 18, of the 

s.~ of the S.E.~ of the S.E,~ of Sec. 14, T.2N., Troy Twp., now City of 

Troy, Oakland County, Michigan.

Plat recorded in Liber 6, Page 48, Oakland County Records. 


GUARANTY SURVEY CO.
DATE 3/1/91 Job # 171791 RKOJI!!VrIUtJo:I) I..ASI) M1ftlVH'VOIbt 

EREBY CERTIFY that I have IIUrWlyed III"' 1029 SOUTH WASHINGTON 
ROYAL OAK. MICHIGAN '8067peel the property llefeln deecr'bed; and UlI ---.....

;< ., . ) , ...-._-"')

IIU'">' w" performed with a relative eno /'/# ,/',,',I '/',.. . .......',,_ ".," ,"
, .' ""CAeA " ..."./ ........_'I-..r. 01 no gr..ter tlllln 1 In 5000 and tha V-.e; /-""'~((.,//<::"-:?1..__~'~ ~?;';J":I'
:Ile requir.menta 01 P...... 132, li10 haWl bMI PETER G, PITCHFORD ./;/ 
)lilld with. LESTER G, CHARLES v 

7 



1 

 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the __________ amendment to the 
Zoning District Map of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 05.20.00 of Chapter 39 is hereby amended to permit the zoning map of said code to 
be, and the same is hereby amended to delineate the subject parcel as B-3 (General 
Business), the following described property, to wit: 
 
 T2N, R11E, S ½ OF THE S.E. ¼ OF THE S.E. ¼ OF SEC 14 
 

SEC 14 SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO 18 LOT 5 EXCEPT THE WEST 65 FT, ALSO 
EXCEPT THE SOUTH 27 FT TAKEN FOR THE WIDENING OF WATTLES ROAD 

 
The subject property is located on the north side of Wattles, west of John R (1883 – 1939 
E. Wattles), in section 14, within the B-1 (Local Business) Zoning District, being 
approximately 1.29 acres in size. 
 
Section 3.  Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the 
extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
 



2 

 

Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any work, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date  
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan, on Monday, the 18th day of May, 2009. 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
PUBLISHED: __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-736 Harlan Shopping Plaza Sec 14\Z 736 Published Map Amendment.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 14, 2009 
  

 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 736) – Proposed Learning 
Center, Harlan Shopping Plaza, North side of Wattles, West of John R (1883-1939 
E. Wattles), Section 14, From B-1 (Local Business) to B-2 (Community Business) or 
B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning application.  Mr. Savidant announced the Planning Department 
received a letter of opposition, of which a copy was distributed to members prior to 
the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant addressed the petitioner’s written 
request to rezone the subject parcel to only the B-3 zoning district. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the proposed B-3 district is consistent with the intent of the 
Master Plan and compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.  It is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the rezoning request to the B-3 
zoning district. 
 
Mr. Miller addressed the rezoning application with respect to the petitioner’s original 
request to B-2 or B-3 and the relation of B-3 zoning to the Master Plan. 
 
The petitioner, Lydia Hong of 16050 Fairfax, Southfield, was present.   
 
Dan DeYonker, Associate Broker of ReMax First, was present also to represent the 
petitioner.  Mr. DeYonker addressed the petitioner’s request to rezone to only the B-
3 zoning district with respect to the current economy and the setback requirements 
of the B-2 district. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson spoke favorably of the rezoning request to B-3. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-04-034 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
WHEREAS, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the B-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on the north side of Wattles, west of 
John R, within Section 14, being approximately 1.29 acres in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 1 

DATE: April 3, 2009 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – Harlan Shopping 

Plaza, North side of Wattles, West of John R, Section 14 – B-1 to B-3 (Z-
736) 

 
 
Although this item was advertised to be rezoned to B-2 or B-3, the applicant submitted a 
letter on April 3, 2009 requesting that the Planning Commission consider only B-3 
zoning. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is the Lydia Hong Trust. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Wattles, west of John R, in section 14. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The property is approximately 1.29 acres in size. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The Harlan Shopping Plaza. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Community Business.   
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes rezoning the parcel to B-3 General Business.   
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates the applicant proposes to make the property more marketable 
by expanding the range of potential permitted uses on the site, including a learning 
center. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: O-1 Low Rise Office. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: B-1 Local Business. 
  



 2 

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Vacant. 
South: Medical office. 
East: Infinity Square retail center. 
West: Single Family Residential.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-3 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

 Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-2 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions. 

 

 Mortuary establishments. 
 

 Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities. 

 

 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 

 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repair of recreational vehicles. 
 

 New and used car salesroom, showroom, or office. 
 

 Governmental offices, public utility offices, exchanges, transformer stations, pump 
stations and service yards but not including outdoor storage. 

 

 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 

 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

 Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted 
within this district. 

 

 Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within B-3 
Districts, apart from restaurants. 

 

Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or heath clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation. 

 

 Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-3 District. 

  



 3 

 Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

 Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second-hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational. 

 

 Motel or hotel. 
 

Veterinary hospitals. 
 

 Commercial kennels. 
 

 Automobile repair garages. 
 

 Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
Comparison of B-2 Community Business District and B-3 General Commercial District: 
The B-3 district permits all of the uses permitted by right or by special conditions in the 
B-2 district, plus some additional uses.  Footnote G of Section 31.30.00 requires a 75-
foot rear yard setback for the B-2 district, when a parcel abuts a residential zoning 
district.  This requirement does not apply to the B-3 district, which has a 30 foot rear 
yard setback requirement.  The abutting parcel to the north is zoned R-1C One Family 
Residential.  The building is set back only 30 feet from the rear property line.  Therefore, 
rezoning the parcel to B-2 would create a legal non-conforming structure.  This means if 
the building were to be destroyed for any reason it could not be rebuilt on its existing 
footprint, within the required rear yard setback, without first being granted a variance to 
do so by the BZA.   
 
Compliance with Location Standards of the B-3 District:  
There are no Location Standards for the B-3 General Commercial District. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant proposes no additional construction on the property. 
 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 
 
Quality of Life Considerations: 
Rezoning the parcel would expand its development potential, as B-3 permits a wider 
range of uses than does B-1.  
 
Design and Community Character Considerations: 
The parcel abuts retail zoning on the east and west, and office to the south.  The 
existing building on the subject parcel could be re-used under the provisions of the B-3 
zoning district.  If rezoned from B-1 to B-3, the underlying zoning will remain retail.  The 
B-3 district permits a wider range of uses than B-1. 



 4 

Preservation and Enhancement of Natural Features: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Low Impact Development Considerations: 
The application indicates the applicants intend to continue to use the existing building.  
There is no indication that the applicant intends to utilize LID techniques.  
 
Non-motorized Access Considerations: 
There is a 5-foot wide sidewalk on the north side of Wattles when an 8-foot sidewalk is 
required.  Also, the building lacks a connecting sidewalk linking the building to the public 
sidewalk on Wattles.   
 
Access Management Considerations: 
Access to the property is provided by two curb cuts on Long Lake Road.  Access 
management could be improved in this area through the reduction in the number of curb 
cuts and the use of cross-access easements and shared parking.   
 
Compliance with Ten Tenets of Smart Growth: 
The following is a list of the Ten Tenets of Smart Growth: 

1. Create a range of housing opportunities. 
2. Create walkable communities. 
3. Encourage community and stakeholder collaboration in development decisions. 
4. Foster distinctive, attractive communities with a strong sense of place. 
5. Make development decisions predictable, fair, and cost effective. 
6. Mix land uses. 
7. Preserve open space, farmland, natural beauty and critical environment areas. 
8. Provide a variety of transportation options. 
9. Strengthen and direct development towards existing communities. 

10. Take advantage of compact building design. 

It appears the applicant wishes to continue to use the existing building on the site, with 
an extended range of permitted uses. 

Compliance with Future Land Use Plan of the Master Plan: 
The Master Plan calls for a Neighborhood Node at the corner of Wattles and John R 
(Neighborhood Node F).  The Master Plan proposes that the node include high-density 
residential in combination with restaurants, limited office, and retail. 
 
The parcel is within the established Neighborhood Node area described in the Future 
Land Use Plan.  While not specifically proposing a mixed use development, rezoning 
the parcel to B-3 expands the range of potential uses, including permitting certain types 
of offices.  The rezoning application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
  



 5 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The parcel is presently zoned B-1 Local Commercial.  Abutting parcels to the east and 
west are also zoned commercial.  Rezoning the parcel to B-3 would have the effect of 
expanding the range of potential uses for the property, including office uses. 
 
The proposed B-3 district is consistent with the intent of the Master Plan and compatible 
with abutting zoning districts and uses.  City Management recommends approval of the 
rezoning request to B-3 General Business. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Letter from Petitioner, dated April 3, 2009 
2. Zoning Maps 
3. Aerial Map 
4. Master Plan Maps 
 
cc: Applicant 

File / Z 736 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-736 Harlan Shopping Plaza Sec 14\PC Report Z-736 4 14 09.docx 



To: 
Planning Department 
CityofTroy 
RE: Harlan Shopping Piaz! APR ~3 2009 
1883·1939 E, Wattles 
Troy Mi 48085 PLANNiNG DEPT 
Planning File No. Z-736 

I Lydia Hong am requesting that my original application for rezoning ofmy 
property located at 1883·1939 E. Wattles Parcel # 88-20-14426-034 be 
changed from 82, 83 to only B 3 Zoning. 

Thank you, 

77 
.~,y~. ?-,'- .' :I:..L.t£J..________. 

~ '. . (..?(J--v///~ 
Lyd' ong.Ownef- .... 
Lydia Hong Trust 
413/2009 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

2,230

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

372

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet3720 186 Notes

Z 736 PROPOSED REZONING, Section 14
1883-1939 E. Wattles, Proposed Learning 
Center (Harlan Shopping Plaza), From B-2 
to B-3

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

1,115

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

186

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet1860 93 Notes

Z 736 PROPOSED REZONING, Section 14  
1883-1939 E. Wattles, Proposed Learning 
Center (Harlan Shopping Plaza), From B-2 
to B-3

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

1,115

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

186

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet1860 93 Notes

Z 736 PROPOSED REZONING, Section 14  
1883-1939 E. Wattles, Proposed Learning 
Center (Harlan Shopping Plaza), From B-2 
to B-3

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

1,115

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

186

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet1860 93 Notes

Z 736 PROPOSED REZONING, Section 14  
1883-1939 E. Wattles, Proposed Learning 
Center (Harlan Shopping Plaza), From B-2 
to B-3

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

557

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

93

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet930 46 Notes

Z 736 PROPOSED REZONING, Section 14  
1883-1939 E. Wattles, Proposed Learning 
Center (Harlan Shopping Plaza), From B-2 
to B-3

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

The term “Future Land Use” brings to mind 
a prescription for isolated, parcel-by-
parcel land use classifi cations that permit 

the development of a very limited number of 
land uses. This model tends to  perpetuate the 
separation of land uses, even when it is not 
always the best option. This type of traditional 
land use planning was brought about in an 
age when zoning was in its infancy and land 
was readily available.  There was less concern 
about the conservation of natural resources, 
and economic factors took precedence.  While 
frequently eff ective, this kind of planning has 
had unintended consequences.  

As cities and regions have grown over the 

years, traditional land use plans have fostered 

sprawl in Southeast Michigan and impeded 

compact communities served by close 

proximity to jobs, schools, and community 

services.  At risk has been quality of life, an area 
which is critical to remaining competitive in 
the 21st Century, as discussed in detail in many 
Chapters of this Plan.

he term “Future Land Use” brings to mind

Future Land Use Categories
Single Family Residential 91
Neighborhood Nodes 93
High Density Residential 99
Big Beaver Road 101
Rochester Road 103
Maple Road 105
South John R Road 107
Northfield 109
Smart Zone 111
Automall 113
Transit Center 115
21st Century Industry 117
Recreation and Open Space 119
Public and Quasi-Public 119

87CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Land Patterns: 

City Design and Image

Today, Troy and many other communities 

have begun looking for new ways to improve 

quality of life by creating vibrant, mixed-use 

areas where jobs, great schools, opportunities 

for social interaction, excellent services and 

shopping, and high-quality neighborhoods 

exist in close proximity.  Techniques such 
as Planned Unit Development (PUD) have 
been developed for just this reason. PUDs  
demonstrate that diff erent land uses are 
compatible and supportive of each another. 

As a result, this Future Land Use Plan 

will expand on the concept of “villaging” 

established by Troy Vision 2020, and translate 

that concept into policies that manifest 

themselves on the Future Land Use Map. 

It will introduce the concept of the “Social 
Neighborhood” and describe how it is intended 
to interact with the “Economic Neighborhood.” 
It will describe the character and role of places 
like the Big Beaver Corridor and Oakland Mall, 
an alternative way to think about Maple and 
Rochester Roads, and the industrial areas of the 
City.

There are many traditional land use elements 
that should be maintained in Troy. Adherence 

to conventional approaches in all areas of the 

community will not allow the City to realize 

its vision.

A shortfall of traditional land use planning 
is the primary focus on land use, and the lack 
of attention toward physical form. The Troy 
Master Plan will incorporate city design and 
image as primary areas of focus.  This Chapter 
will establish future land use categories 
on which the Plan is based, and defi ne the 
urban design characteristics of established 
categories.



88 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Land Use and City Design

The Troy Future Land Use Map does not 
allocate specifi c uses on a parcel-by-
parcel basis, but represents a graphic 

illustration of the overall policies of this Plan, 

and describes the intended character of the 

various areas of the City.  The primary categories 
will be supported by urban design guidelines 
and, in certain cases, sub-area plans which 
provide additional detail with regard to the 
intended styles and patterns of development.  

The Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy will 
be implemented through a variety of techniques. 
The most signifi cant of these tools is the 
application of Zoning Classifi cations consistent 
with the Plan. It is important to note, however, 
that the Future Land Use Map is a long-range 
guide, and is not a “Zoning Map” intended to 
indicate the geographic extent of all land use 
classifi cations or to enable all indicated uses to 
occur immediately.  The Future Land Use Map is 
included on the following page.

Neighborhoods are vital components of the 
City.  Historically, neighborhoods provide 

societal, educational, recreational and 

economic needs within a half-mile walking 

distance.  The Vision 2020 strategy establishes 
the idea of fostering “villages” within the City.  
Residents want to enjoy a personal sense of place 
which is best found at the neighborhood scale.  
For Troy, the ingredients are in place for classic 

walkable neighborhoods.  Major thoroughfares 
delineate square mile grid patterns.  Elementary 
and Middle Schools are centrally located within 
many of the neighborhoods.  The corners of most 
neighborhoods are developed with convenience 
retail and service businesses.         

The Master Plan recognizes that current 
lifestyles warrant modifying the walkable 
neighborhood concept.  Not every person will 
walk a half-mile to get to a store or school.  Most 

Elements of Great Streets and 
Neighborhoods
Great Streets

Accommodate many users with various modes • 
of transportation.
Connect smoothly with the rest of the street • 
network.
Encourage social interaction.• 
Allow for safe and pleasant pedestrian activity.• 
Have a unique sense of public space created • 
through physical elements.
Consider the scale and architecture of • 
surrounding building infrastructure.
Benefi ts from community involvement.• 
Refl ect the culture or history of the community.• 
Complement the visual qualities of the • 
community.
Utilize green and sustainable practices.• 

Great Neighborhoods

Consider the scale and architecture of the • 
building infrastructure.
Foster social interaction.• 
Enable multiple modes of transportation safely • 
and effi  ciently.
Are safe.• 
Are good stewards of the natural environment.• 
Refl ect the community’s character and have • 
unique characteristics that provide a sense of 
place.
Retain the community’s history.• 
Promote and protect air quality and • 
stewardship of natural resources.
Protect or enhance the local environment and • 
biodiversity.

Great Streets and Neighborhoods:

Implement LEED standards in construction and • 
neighborhood design.
Have planted street trees.• 
Reuse materials when possible.• 
Make recycling convenient.• 
Facilitate non-motorized and/or public • 
transportation.

Planning and Zoning News, October 2007

people will walk fi ve minutes, or about one 
quarter of a mile.  Typical comparison shopping 
for clothing, hardware and the like are measured 
by service radii related to drive times which 



CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

89CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E
 R

D

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS
 R

D

14 MILE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

 R
D

JO
H

N
 R

 R
D

A
D

A
M

S
 R

D

SQUARE LAKE RD

BIG BEAVER RD

WATTLES RD

MAPLE RD

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

 H
W

Y

C
R

O
O

K
S

 R
D

SOUTH BOULEVARD

LONG LAKE RD

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 R

D

Basemap Source: Oakland County Planning

Plot Generation: 9.24.08

0 5,0002,500
Feet

I-75

Future Land Use

High Density Residential

Neighborhood Nodes

Big Beaver Road

Rochester Road

Northfield

Single Family Residential

Maple Road

The Smart Zone

Public and Quasi-Public

Automall

21st Century Industrial

The Transit Center

Section Number

Recreation and Open Space

South John R. Road



90 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E
 R

D

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS
 R

D

14 MILE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

 R
D

JO
H

N
 R

 R
D

A
D

A
M

S
 R

D

SQUARE LAKE RD

BIG BEAVER RD

WATTLES RD

MAPLE RD

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

 H
W

Y

C
R

O
O

K
S

 R
D

SOUTH BOULEVARD

LONG LAKE RD
R

O
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

 R
D

Basemap Source: Oakland County Planning

Plot Generation: 9.24.08

0 5,0002,500
Feet

Neighborhoods

Social Neighborhood

Single Family Residential: The Social Neighborhood

Neighborhood Nodes: The Economic Neighborhood

Recreation and Open Space: Extraordinary Amenities

Economic Neighborhood

Public and Quasi-Public: The Foundation of Troy's Neighborhoods

All Other Uses

Section Number

are not realistically walkable.  Furthermore, 
Michigan has cold winters that limit year-round 
walkability.  Troy’s neighborhoods, now and in 
the foreseeable future, will serve its residents 
in two roles: the Social Neighborhood and the 
Economic Neighborhood.

The Social and Economic Neighborhoods of the 
City are shown on this Neighborhoods Map.  The 
circles surrounding the Neighborhood Nodes 

and the circles within the Social Neighborhoods 
are meant to demonstrate a rough service area 
for each neighborhood.  While not necessarily 
precise, the circles are meant to demonstrate 
the basic relationship between the Social 
Neighborhood and the Economic Neighborhood.  
The circles are not meant to establish a formal 
land use category or policy in and of themselves, 
but rather to validate the planned uses at and 
around the Economic Nodes. 



93

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Neighborhood Nodes: 

The Economic Neighborhood

Located at intersections of the City’s main • 
roads.
Work together with Social Neighborhoods to • 
create a more livable community.
Mixed use.• 
Provide neighborhood gathering places.• 
Accommodate the daily needs of residents.• 

Neighborhood Nodes are the concentrated, 

commercial and mixed-use centers situated 

at major intersections of Troy thoroughfares 

that serve as the center of the City’s Economic 

Neighborhoods.  The nodes are specifi cally 
identifi ed on pages 95 and 96.  Economic 
Neighborhoods are destinations created as 
“go to” places that take on a social role, serving 
both as a place to meet basic needs of the 
community and as 21st century village centers.  
The attributes of Economic Neighborhoods 
are described in more detail in the fi nal 
section of this Chapter, and the urban design 
characteristics of Neighborhood Nodes will be 
described in depth in Chapter 10.  The nodes 
will typically permit a mix of commercial, offi  ce, 
and high-density residential, although the 
predominant uses in any Neighborhood Node 
development must be in keeping with the 
node characteristics described on pages 95 and 

96.  Industrial uses will not be permitted in the 
Neighborhood Nodes. 

The Economic Neighborhoods of Troy also 
center on the square mile grid system.  Unlike 
the social neighborhood, the Economic 

Neighborhoods are centered on major road 

intersections where commercial and offi  ce 

development occurs.  When destinations are 
created, these nodes become a “go to” place 
and take on a social role.  Each of these nodes 
serves four quadrants of the overlapping social 
neighborhoods and has the ability to bring 
residents of four neighborhoods together.  

These Economic Neighborhood nodes 
are destinations that draw people, visually 
distinguished from the balance of corridor strips 
through greater density and scale.  Variation in 
building height will often be used to separate 
the node from the surrounding area, but will 
not be so extreme as to visually overpower 
abutting neighborhoods.  The separation of 
building heights at intersections with the 
“between” segments of corridors stimulates the 
visual concept of “pulsing” development and 
sets up a system of visual anchors.   

Moderately dense residential environments 
may be encouraged within some nodes to 
provide steady activity for longer periods of the 
day.  In these cases, residences may be mixed 
with offi  ces on upper fl oors or be developed 
immediately adjacent to the commercial areas.  
Connections between the commercial activity 
and residences must be directly and seamlessly 
integrated.  

During the course of the planning process, the 
Planning Commission closely analyzed the need 
for additional neighborhood nodes throughout 
the City.  The City will continue to consider 
the demand for additional nodes as part of 
subsequent plan revisions.

NEIGHBORHOOD NODES



94 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
These nodes are within a fi fteen • 
minute walking distance of residential 
neighborhoods to permit alternative modes 
of transportation.  

Development will be denser and taller than • 
the surrounding area, encouraging visual 
prominence to signal a gathering space.

Nodes should be generally confi ned to a • 
1,000 foot radius from a major intersection.

The nodes provide uses and spaces that • 
attract and welcome neighborhood 
residents.  

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should be separated from the • 
right-of-way line by a landscaped greenbelt, 
one lane of off -street parking or a pedestrian 
walk, or a combination of these.  

Primary parking areas will be located within • 
rear or interior side yards.

Off -street parking should be screened from • 
the public right-of-way by a knee wall or low 
decorative fence with a hedge of plantings.

Walks will connect adjacent developments • 
and the public sidewalks.

Well-defi ned crosswalks with timed • 
signalization will permit safe crossings.

Flexible use of space allowing modest • 
outdoor gathering spaces, such as plazas, 
will be encouraged.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should be between two and three • 
stories, although one–story structures 
accommodating gas stations or other 
special situations may be permitted.  

One-story buildings should have a minimum • 
exterior height of sixteen feet.

A ground level story should have a • 

minimum height of twelve feet from 
fi nished fl oor to fi nished ceiling.  

Facades facing major thoroughfares will • 
be treated as fronts and should have a 
minimum of half transparent glass and 
special architectural design treatments.  

Fenestration (the arrangement of windows • 
and doors) should be highlighted through 
the use of awnings, overhangs or trim 
detailing.  

Lighting will be carefully managed so as not • 
to encroach on adjacent residential areas.

The following pages contain a table 
describing the primary intended uses and 

character of the Neighborhood Nodes designated 
on the Future Land Use Map.  Individual Nodes are 
numbered and identifi ed on the Economic Nodes 

Map following the table.



95

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Node/Intersection Primary Uses and Character

A 14 Mile and 
Dequindre Road

Non-residential uses catering to the day-to-day needs of the workforce in the 
surrounding industrial area.  Restaurants and convenience needs integrated with 
banks and other service uses in compact developments would suit the needs of this 
area.

B Maple Road and 
Dequindre Road

The unique neighborhood node is home to a collection of uses serving the local 
Polish population.  Uses complementary to the cultural center and bank which help 
this area serve as a gathering place and focus area for the neighborhood could 
include limited housing, service uses, or specialty retail and dining.

C John R. Road and 
Maple Road

The node would best serve the area with a predominantly commercial mix of uses 
catering to the immediate residential area coming and going from their homes. The 
node should serve as a transition to the more intense commercial development to 
the south.

D Big Beaver Road and 
Dequindre Road

This area should be a high-intensity, high-density, compact area that serves as a 
notable entry point to the community.  Development may include residential, retail, 
office, and service-oriented uses, but should be designed to create a very noticeable 
“gateway” into Troy with its complex, high-density, mixed-use character.

E Wattles Road and 
Dequindre Road

The predominant use in this node should be offices, both medical and professional.  
Limited commercial service uses designed to complement the main focus of the 
area as an office node serving this area of the City may also be permissible, if clearly 
secondary to the primary office character of the area.

F John R Road and 
Wattles Road

This node may include all uses from high-density residential in combination with 
restaurants, limited office, and retail.  Development at this intersection should include 
at least two of these uses in any one development, in order to better complement 
and strengthen the already mixed-use character of the node.

G Rochester Road and 
Wattles Road

A careful blend of commercial uses and office uses, effectively transitioned into the 
adjoining residential neighborhoods, should be the main uses at this intersection.  
Recent residential development in the area has taken pedestrian access to the 
intersection into consideration with effective pathways and sidewalks, and any new 
development at the intersection must continue this positive trend.

H Livernois Road and 
Wattles Road 

This lower-intensity area is characterized by single-family residential directly abutting 
the southwest corner of the intersection, and uses which generate only sporadic 
activity, such as churches and day care.  This node contains the Troy Museum and 
Historic Village. New development or redevelopment at this node must be especially 
considerate of the adjoining residential and low-intensity uses and should not 
include any retail or restaurant uses.  Office and other uses similar to the existing uses 
would likely provide the best combination here.

I Crooks Road and 
Wattles Road

Development at this location should be low-impact and provide a high benefit to 
the neighborhood using the least amount of land.  Compact, walkable mixed use 
development with a combination of uses serving the immediate surroundings would 
be an ideal fit.  Integrated compact development which would allow a user to park 
once and meet several daily needs would be a positive contribution to the node. The 
City also recognizes that expansion of the White Chapel Cemetery into the northeast 
corner of this node would be appropriate.

J Dequindre Road and 
Long Lake Road

Predominantly commercial, catering to both local needs and regional traffic, 
new development and redevelopment should be mostly commercial, identifying 
opportunities for small office mixed-use and variations in floor area to allow for 
a wide range of commercial types.  Pedestrian access to the adjoining area and 
effective screening should be primary areas of focus during the site design process.



96 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Node/Intersection Primary Uses and Character

K John R Road and 
Long Lake Road

Like Crooks Road and Wattles Road, compact, walkable mixed use development with 
a combination of uses serving the immediate surroundings would be an ideal fit.  
Integrated compact development which would allow a user to park once and meet 
several daily needs would be a positive contribution to the node.

L Rochester Road and 
Long Lake Road

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

M Livernois Road and 
Long Lake Road

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

N Dequindre Road and 
Square Lake Road

Low-intensity commercial uses should remain, but redevelopment should include an 
integrated compact residential component, live/work units, or small office.  Service-
oriented use development in combination with new residential development would 
provide a unique setting here.

O John R Road and 
Square Lake Road

Near a known heron rookery, this node must be careful to respect this important 
natural resource.  New development or redevelopment should complement the 
churches and limited commercial uses in the area, and should incorporate above-
average landscaping, natural buffers, and conscientious site design to enhance the 
known natural features in the area.

P Rochester Road and 
Square Lake Road

Major commercial uses dominate and should continue to provide a foundation for 
this neighborhood node.  While uses in the area may cater to regional traffic, service 
uses, retail, and limited office uses designed to provide service to the immediate 
residential neighborhood should be incorporated into any new development or 
redevelopment plans.

Q Livernois Road and 
Square Lake Road

Development in this area should be especially considerate of the remaining historic 
asset of the neighborhood.  Adaptive use of existing historic structures must be 
considered before demolition or relocation of these resources.  Low-intensity uses 
working in conjunction with one another to form a central neighborhood village, 
walkable and accessible, would create an ideal complement to the predominantly 
residential surroundings.

R John R Road and 
South Boulevard

Small local commercial uses and office uses should be the focus of this node, to 
complement the large scale office development across the City’s boundary to the 
north, within the City of Rochester Hills.

S Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard

This neighborhood node provides a suitable mix of uses to cater to the daily needs 
of the immediate residential area, while also providing a unique opportunity for 
specialty retailers, compact walkable residential development, and small-scale office 
development in an integrated, mixed-use setting.

T Livernois Road and 
South Boulevard

Limited local commercial and housing for seniors in a dense development pattern 
should remain the primary focus of this neighborhood node.

U Crooks Road and 
South Boulevard

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

 



Kathy Czamecki 

From: John Trublowski Otrublowski5885@wowway.comj 
Sent: Sunday, April 19, 20092:16 PM 
To: Kathy Czarnecki 
Subject: potential rezoning of Harlan Plaza 

Dear Planning Commission, 
Please do not recommend that the Harlan Plaza, located on Wattles west of John R be 
allowed to be rezoned. If the owner wants to encourage potential tenants, maybe they 
should paint/update the current structure, not look to be rezoned. Thank you. 
Margaret Trublowski 
Troy resident since 1987 

1 



Kathy Czarnecki 

From: Cathy Killian [onekilJian@comcast.netj 
Sent: Sunday, April 19, 20093:05 PM 
To: Kathy Czarnecki 
Subject: Rezoning of Harlan Plaza 

I have been a resident of Troy since 1977. I watched Harlan Plaza being built. When it was first built is was a nice 
looking plaza. Years have gone by and the owners have not taken care of the plaza. The plaza now is an eye sore for 
the City of Troy. If the owner wants to attract new businesses, the owner first should update the plaza, Asking for 
rezoning from B1 To B3 should not be granted until the owner has updated the plaza, first to see what businesses could 
be attracted with a new look. Giving the owner rezoning to help fill the storefronts should not happen, I understand the 
company marketing the plaza feels if the rezoning took place new businesses might become interested in Harlan Plaza. 
But as a long time residence of Troy, I feel updating the Plaza should be the first move, Changing the rezoning should be 
the last thing done, not the first thing, Also it is my understanding that B3 would allow for Adult type of businesses, The 
plaza is very close to a church and high school. I know that the any adult businesses would need to be at least 500 feet 
from residences, But any residence that backs up to commercial is able to go commercial. Once you have opened 
Pandora's Box you can not close it Please do not allow the Harlan Plaza to be rezoned to 83. 
Thank you, 
Cathy and Mike Killian 
3972 Kings Point Dr 
Troy, MI 48083 

1 



Kathy Czarnecki 

From: Mark F Miller 
Sent: Monday, April 20, 2009 2:43 PM 
To: Brent Savidant; Kathy Czarnecki 
Subject: FW: Rezoning of Harlan Plaza 

Public comment for City Council Public Hearing. 

From: Cynthia A Stewart 
Sent: Monday, April 20, 20098:33 AM 
To: John Szerlag; Brian P Murphy 
Cc: Mark F Miller 
Subject: FVV: Rezoning of Harlan Plaza 

From: Cathy Killian [mailto:onekillian@comcast.net] 
Sent: Sunday, April 19, 20093:11 PM 
To: Louise Schilling; rbeltram@wideopenwest.com; cristinabroomfield@yahoo.com; david@eisenbacher.org; Wade 
Fleming; Mfhowryl@umich.edu; marykerwin5@hotmail.com 
Cc: Cynthia A Stewart 
Subject: Rezoning of Harlan Plaza 

We have been a resident of Troy since 1977. I watched Harlan Plaza being built. When it was first built is was a nice 
looking plaza. Years have gone by and the owners have not taken care of the plaza. The plaza now is an eye sore for 
the City of Troy. If the owner wants to attract new businesses, the owner first should update the plaza. Asking for 
rezoning from B1 To B3 should not be granted until the owner has updated the plaza, first to see what businesses could 
be attracted with a new look. Giving the owner rezoning to help fill the storefronts should not happen. I understand the 
company marketing the plaza feels if the rezoning took place new businesses might become interested in Harlan Plaza. 
But as a long time residence of Troy, I feel updating the Plaza should be the first move. Changing the rezoning should be 
the last thing done, not the first thing. Also it is my understanding that 83 would allow for Adult type of businesses. The 
plaza is very close to a church and high school. I know that the any adult businesses would need to be at least 500 feet 
from residences. But any residence that backs up to commercial is able to go commercial. Once you have opened 
Pandora's Box you can not close it. Please do nat allow the Harlan Plaza to be rezoned to B3. We have also sent this 
letter to the planning commission. 
Thank you. 
Cathy and Mike Killia n 
3972 Kings Point Dr 
Troy, MI 48083 

1 

mailto:marykerwin5@hotmail.com
mailto:Mfhowryl@umich.edu
mailto:david@eisenbacher.org
mailto:cristinabroomfield@yahoo.com
mailto:rbeltram@wideopenwest.com
mailto:mailto:onekillian@comcast.net


7 '7. 
A.. I.~ezc ill nq Appll cO-h0l1 

AqMldti:' Iltm ~5Kathy Czarnecki '. , 

From: Kim Flaig [KBDFlaig@wowway.com] 
Sent: Saturday, April 11, 2009 2:38 PM 
To: Kathy Czarnecki 
Subject: Rezoning at Wattles between John R and Rochester Road 

The traffic congestion is horrendous! Between 3 and 6 pm, it is almost impossible to turn left onto Wattles Road. There 
are abandoned strip malls on Wattles and Rochester Roads that are real eyesores. Some have been vacant for years. 
There is still an onset of construction on Rochester Road erecting more strip malls that will allow drivers to make left 
hand turns in or out ofthe condos and/or strip malls, which may be the culprit for many accidents to occur. Rochester 
Road alone is terrible for accidents because most drivers do not stop for red lights, a fine example is at Bishop and 
Rochester Road. Many times, drivers turn left onto Bishop and the ongoing traffic heading north either block the traffic 
signal or go through it causing broadside collisions. A police officer could sit at that traffic signal and ticket many drivers 
for going through the light or blocking the traffic-those funds could be used to assist in road repair. 

The shopping center would definitely cause traffic congestion and there is no guarantee that the shopping center would 
be completely filled as demonstrated with these other abandoned buildings - SYMs, the aforementioned strip mall on 
Wattles and john R, a few restaurant buildings. 

Why not build a small park buffered by tall trees with a gazebo, a small flower garden, a few swings, and green 
environmental garbage receptacles encased in wood to match the environment, whereby passersby could rest whether 
they bicycle, jog or walk? Today's world is going green, not concrete? It may be wise for SOmeone to travel to the 
location of Square lake and Franklin. On the northwest corner, there is a quaint, well-maintained park. It may be wise 
for the City of Troy to follow the building of that type of park. 

There is a day care center at this location and to have a little park would be nice for those parents who need to wait to 
pick up their children. Maybe give the children a little down time at the park before wrestling with the traffic 
congestion. 

It is food for thought to help the City of Troy go green! 

Kimberley Flaig 

1 

mailto:KBDFlaig@wowway.com


 

 
May 5, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                  Rescind / Re-Award Contract – Hauling & Disposal, Item #4) Catch Basin Sludge and Street 

Sweepings - Resolution #2009-04-139-F4b 
 
Background 
 On April 20, 2009, Troy City Council awarded one-year contracts to provide Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris 

with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on an item by item basis to the low bidders: Ahern 
Contracting Inc for Item #1) Broken concrete, Bedrock Maintenance Services, Items 2) Broken asphalt and #3) 
Fill Dirt, and Metropolitan Demolition for Item #4) Catch basin sludge and street sweepings (CC Res #2009-04-
139-F4b) 

 Items bid were awarded after consideration was given to the discounts quoted. 
 The awards were contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, 

including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 On May 4, 2009, after numerous attempts to clear insurance have failed with Metropolitan Demolition, the City 

recommends the company be placed in default of contract for being non-compliant and non-responsive to 
providing insurance requirements as specified. 

 The bid document states – After approval by Troy City Council, the City’s Risk Manager will review the 
insurance certificate(s) to ensure all acceptable documents have been received, and allow (5) additional days 
after verbal / electronic notification to submit final insurance certificates(s) in accordance with specifications.  If 
not so received, the company will be considered in default of contract and will be barred from doing business 
with the City of Troy for a minimum of three (3) years for failing to meet insurance requirements.  

  
Financial Considerations 
 The City’s total estimated cost under this contract could increase by $145.00, due to the loss of a 1% discount 

for payment within fifteen (15) days.    
 
Legal Considerations 
 Metropolitan Demolition will receive a written notification of default and remedies for reinstatement as a potential 

vendor after three (3) years. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services for the City of 

Troy. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved on  

April 20, 2009, to Metropolitan Demolition LLC of Romulus, MI, for Item #4) Catch basin sludge and street 
sweepings, (Resolution #2009-04-139-F4b).  Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the next lowest 
bidder, Waste Management of Michigan at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 13, 2009. 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Rescind-Re-Award Hauling&Disposal MetroDemo 05.09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-19
Opening Date -- 3/13/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 4/9/09 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

sl Re-Award Vendor
VENDOR NAME: ** Bedrock Ahern Waste 

Maintenance Contracting Inc Management
Services of Michigan

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)  DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

$4.2655 (w/terms  $4.2042)

1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed 4.49$                 4.29$                8.00$                 
 w/fill dirt (w/terms)

4.2655$            4.3512$            
2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 4.49$                4.44$                8.00$                 

4.2655$            5.3802$            
3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer 4.49$                5.49$                8.50$                

repairs, as well as ditching operations. Material may
include culverts, large stumps, logs & wood materials 16.0455$           16.121$            

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 16.89$              16.45$              14.50$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 61,790.00$        67,900.00$       98,000.00$        

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: ** 35,920.00$       8,580.00$         14,500.00$       
Veolia ES Solid 

DISPOSAL SITE: Blank Waste Midwest, Inc. Blank

APPROVED SITE Y or N Blank Yes Blank
EPA PERMIT #: Unknown

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations Blank 7 AM to 5 PM Blank
24 Hr Phone # 248-627-3338 888-443-1717 Blank

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Blank No Blank
Signed

INSURANCE: Can Meet Blank XX Blank
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Y or N Blank No Blank
Net 10 Days Net 30 or

PAYMENT TERMS: 5% Discount Net 10 - 2% Disc. No
3/20/2009

DELIVERY: 48hrs or less weather permitting 3/13/2009

MINIMUMS: 50 Tons None None

EXCEPTIONS: Already set up MDOT Certified, Certificate of Insurance

with City of Troy - SoM Licensed & will be provided upon

Insurance on File Fully Insured/ award

Bonded

BOLD FACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
PROPOSAL: One-Year Requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and
  Debris with an Option to Renew for One (1) Additional Year

___________________________
Susan Leirstein CPPB

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 09-19 Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-19
Opening Date -- 3/13/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 4/9/09 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

Default Vendor
VENDOR NAME: Comprehensive Madalyn's Metropolitan

Environmental Contracting LLC Demolition, 
Solutions, Inc. LLC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

(w/terms   $5.88) $10.395
1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed 6.00$                 10.00$               10.50$               

 w/fill dirt
5.88$                 9.405$               

2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 6.00$                 8.00$                 9.50$                 
5.88$                 7.6725$             

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer 6.00$                10.00$               7.75$                
repairs, as well as ditching operations. Material may (w/terms)
include culverts, large stumps, logs & wood materials 15.68$               14.355$            

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 16.00$              20.00$               14.50$              

ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 76,000.00$       118,000.00$      99,250.00$       

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A 14,500.00$        
N/A Depending on

DISPOSAL SITE: Blank Blank Time of Year
Pine Tree Acres

APPROVED SITE Y or N Blank Blank Blank
EPA PERMIT #: MID185388089EPA PERMIT #: MID185388089

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations Blank Blank 7 AM to 6 PM
24 Hr Phone # Blank Blank 734-709-5039

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Blank Blank Yes
Signed 5-Mar-2009

INSURANCE: Can Meet Blank Blank XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Y or N Blank Blank Yes
Net 30 Days

PAYMENT TERMS: 2% Net 10 Net 30 - 0% Disc. 15 days or before
for a 1% discount

DELIVERY: 3/13/2009 As Needed ASAP

MINIMUMS: None 50 or $1000 100

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Hazardous/Contaminated
soils/material & Hauling

ATTEST: Permits/Bonds/Fees/
Cheryl Stewart testing or inspections
Thomas Rosewarne etc……..
Deanna Theobald Default Vendor - Did not respond nor provide insurance as specified
Linda Bockstanz

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 09-19g



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 20, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
  
Resolution #2009-04-139-F-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a) White Cane Week – April 24-May 3, 2009  
b) National Association of Letter Carriers Stamp Out Hunger Food Drive Day – May 9, 2009  
c) National Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month – April, 2009  
d) 2009 Law Day – May 1, 2009 
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 09-3 – Heide, 

Thunderbird, and Oliver Roads Water Main Replacement Project Nos. 08.503.5, 
08.504.5, 08.505.5     

 
Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 09-3, Heide, Thunderbird, 
and Oliver Roads Water Main Replacement to Teltow Contracting, Inc., 4678 Meldrum Road, 
Casco, MI 48064 at an estimated total cost of $1,708,368.10; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Hauling/Disposal of 

Dirt and Debris     
  
Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide 
Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on an 
item by item basis to the low bidders after consideration was given to the discounts quoted: 
 
Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
 Ahern Contracting Inc 
 Chesterfield, MI 

1. Broken concrete with and without 
wire, possibly mixed with fill dirt 

 

$4.29

 
Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  April 20, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

Bedrock Maintenance Services 
 Ortonville, MI 

2. Broken asphalt possibly mixed with 
fill dirt 

3. Fill Dirt, material excavated from 
water and sewer repairs, as well as 
ditching operations. Material may 
include culverts, large stumps, logs 
& wood materials 

$4.49
(w/terms $4.2655)

$4.49

Metropolitan Demolition, LLC 
 Romulus, MI 

4. Catch basin sludge and street 
sweepings 

  - Pine Tree Acres -  

$14.50

 
at unit prices confirmed in the bid tabulation opened March 13, 2009, copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring March 31, 2010; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pump Repair Services 

– Indoor and Outdoor Pools     
  
Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, tools, 
equipment including cranes etc., and transportation services for two-year requirements of pump 
repair and emergency repairs on the City of Troy outdoor and indoor pools with two one-year 
renewal options to the low total bidder, Pro Seal Service Group of Pontiac, MI, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened February 24, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, to expire April 30, 2011; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Ultraviolet Chloramines Destruct 

and Disinfection System  
  
Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all equipment, 
material, and labor to install, start-up, and train staff for an ultraviolet chloramines destruct and 
disinfection system at the Troy Community Center indoor leisure and therapy pools to the sole 
bidder, B & B Pools and Spas of Livonia, MI, for an estimated total project cost of $71,240.00, 
for the system detailed on the bid tabulation opened March 24, 2009, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the bidder submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 



 

 
April 13, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: – Award To Low Bidders – Hauling/Disposal of Dirt 

and Debris 
Background 
 On March 13, 2009, bid proposals were electronically received for one-year requirements of 

Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one additional year. 
 91 vendors were notified via the MITN system with six (6) bid responses received, as well as one 

incomplete bid.  
 Each item on the proposal was considered as a separate bid, after consideration was given to the 

discounts quoted; and recommendations made to the lowest responsible bidders for each item. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the 2009-2010 Operating Budgets for the Streets and Water departments. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-19, Hauling/Disposal of Dirt and Debris was competitively bid as required by City Charter and 

Code. 
 The awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 

specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in providing hauling/disposal 

services for the City of Troy. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
• City management recommends awarding contracts on an item by item basis to the three low bidders.   
 
Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
Ahern Contracting Inc 
  Chesterfield, MI 
 

1). Broken Concrete with and without wire,     
     possibly mixed w/fill dirt 

$4.29

Bedrock Maintenance Services 
  Ortonville, MI 

2). Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 
3). Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and    
     sewer repairs, as well as ditching operations.  
     Material may include culverts, large stumps,  
     logs and wood materials 

$4.49
(w/terms $4.2655)

$4.49

Metropolitan Demolition, LLC 
  Romulus, MI 
 

4). Catch basin sludge and street sweepings 
  - Pine Tree Acres -  

$14.50

 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.20.09 SR1 – Haul-Dispose Dirt-Debris Letter.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



campbellld
Text Box
E-04







 

 
 
 
 

DATE: May 13, 2009 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority’s (LDFA) 2009/10 

Budget 
 
 
The Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) recommended approval of their 
proposed 2009/10 budget at the April 27, 2009 LDFA meeting.  City Management 
recommends that City Council approve the LDFA’s 2009/10 budget. 
 
 
 
 
Attachment:  Budget 2009/10 

 
Prepared by: MFM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Smart Zone\Joint LDFA Troy Subcommittee\Budget\CC Budget approval LDFA 2009 10.docx 

 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



CITY OF TROY 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY 

2009-2010 

PROPOSED BUDGET 

         REVENUE 
       

  
Property Tax 

  
$260,060 

  

  
Interest Income 

  
0 

  

      
$260,060 

  

         

         EXPENDITURES 
       

  
Automation Alley Tech Center - Operations 156,100 

  

  
Automation Alley Tech Center - Building 0 

  

  
Administrative Services 

 
50,500 

  

  
Marketing Costs 

  
53,460 

  

         

         

      
$260,060 

  

      
  

  

         CAPTURED TAXABLE VALUE 

2009-2010 

   
Base Taxable 

Value  

2009 
Taxable 
Value 

2009 
Captured 
Taxable 
Value 

  Commercial Personal PRE 1,431,000  
 

2,205,360  774,360  
  Industrial Personal PRE 0  

 
4,386,520  4,386,520  

  Industrial Real Non-H 13,016,380    19,630,100  6,613,720  
  

         Total Taxable Values 14,447,380    26,221,980  11,774,600  
  

         

         
Millage 
Rates 

County 
City - 
Debt 

Transportation 

* 1/2 
(School 

Op - 
12) 

1/2 (ISD) 
Community 

College 
Hold 

Harmless 
Total 

CP PRE 4.6461  8.7800  0.5900  3.0000  1.6845  1.5844  0.0000  20.2850  

IP PRE 4.6461  8.7800  0.5900  0.0000  1.6845  1.5844  0.0000  17.2850  

IR Non H 4.6461  8.7800  0.5900  9.0000  1.6845  1.5844  0.0000  26.2850  

         * 1/2 School Operating minus 12 mills only for Comm Personal Property, Real is 1/2 School Operating  

         
Captured 

Tax 
Yield 

     

Total 
Captured 
Taxable 
Value 

Total 
Captured 

Mills 

Total 
Captured 

Taxes 

Commercial Personal PRE 
   

774,360  20.2850  15,707.89  

Industrial Personal PRE 
   

4,386,520  17.2850  75,821.00  

Industrial Real Non-H       6,613,720  26.2850  173,841.63  

         Total           11,774,600    265,370.52  

Note: Millage rates estimated - budget @ 98% 
     



 

 
 
 
 
Date: May 12, 2009 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s 2009/10 Budget 
 
 
The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (TBRA) recommended approval of their 
proposed 2009/10 budget at the May 5, 2009 BRA meeting.  City Management recommends 
that City Council approve the TBRA’s 2009/10 budget. 
 
 
Attachment: TBRA Budget 2009/10 
 
 
Prepared by:  MFM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Brownfield Redevelopment Authority\Budget\CC Budget approval BRA 2009 10.docx 

  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



REVENUE Property Tax $13,130

$13,130

EXPENDITURES Payment to TCF Bank 13,130

$13,130

CAPTURED TAXABLE VALUE

2009-2010

Base 

Taxable 

Value

2009 

Taxable 

Value

2009 

Captured 

Taxable 

Value
197,940 503,530 305,590

Commercial Real Non-H -  TROY

Grand Total 197,940 503,530  305,590

Millage Rates County
City - 

Debt

Transport-

ation

State 

Education

Hold 

Harmless

School 

Operating - 

12

ISD
Community 

College
Total

CR Non TROY 4.6461 8.7800 0.5900 6.0000 0.0000 18.0000 3.3690 1.5844 42.9695

Total 

Captured 

Taxable 

Value

Total 

Captured 

Mills

Total 

Captured 

Taxes

Captured Tax 

Yield 305,590 42.9695 13,130

Commercial Real Non-H -  TROY

Grand Total 13,130

CITY OF TROY

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

2009-2010

PROPOSED BUDGET



 

 
 

May 11, 2009 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
  
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver: Troy Community Center Strength Equipment Purchase 
 
Background 
 In January 2003, the Troy Community Center purchased (10) pieces of Keiser brand strength equipment.  

The Keiser equipment was reconditioned at the time of purchase and expected to last 5-7 years. 
 The equipment is now scheduled to be replaced with new commercial grade strength equipment. 
 The City has determined Matrix equipment to be commercial grade quality and favored by users of the 

Community Center when compared to the Keiser equipment.  
  Informal quotes were taken from suppliers in the Midwest including Matrix, the manufacturer.  It was 

discovered that because freight costs are based on weight, it is more expensive, even from the 
manufacturer to have the equipment shipped from out-of-state.  

 Therefore, All Pro Exercise of Farmington Hills is being recommended at an estimated total cost of 
$16,000.00, as detailed on the quotation dated 4/30/2009 for the following reasons – 

o Only authorized distributor in Michigan for Matrix equipment.   
o Local service facility in Farmington Hills 
o Preferred customer and freight discounts 
o Only supplier to offer a trade-in on the Keiser equipment 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the purchase of strength equipment is available in the Parks and Recreation equipment 

supplies account # 101.751.31.755.7740.010 
 
Legal Considerations 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids.  
 
Policy Considerations 
 Troy continues to enhance the health and safety of the community. (Outcome Statement I) 
 Troy adds value to properties through upgrades of equipment to enhance quality of life. (Outcome 

Statement II) 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/ Regular Business -Waiver - StrengthEquipment 05.09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft - CORRECTED April 16, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Thursday, April 16, 2009, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:03 PM. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming   
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

DISCUSSION ITEM: 

1. Meeting with Charles Blockett, Jr. and Associates, Inc. for introductions and 

discussion regarding executive search for City Manager  

A round table discussion took place between Charles Blockett, City Council and members of 
City staff in regard to the executive search process for city manager proposed by Charles 
Blockett, Jr. and Associates. 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 7:42 PM. 

 

The meeting RECONVENED at 7:48 PM. 
 
There was a consensus of City Council members to approve the Key Activities and Dates – 
City of Troy City Manager Search timeline as amended.   
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:55 PM. 
 
The Mayor departed at 9:57 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:06 PM. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:44 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, May 11, 2009, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor Paul Monson of St. Augustine Evangelical Lutheran Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL : 

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming   
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

ABSENT: 

Robin Beltramini – Absent from county 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a proclamation to 
Theresa Ancick, Senior Analyst for Oakland County Community Health recognizing May, 
2009 as Mental Health Month. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Adoption of the 2009/2010 Annual Budget 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the following member of the 
public: 
 
Mary Ann Bernardi 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2009; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

Taxes      $35,908,540 
Licenses and Permits       1,579,000 
Federal Grants             12,100 
State Grants         6,747,500 
Contributions - Local          168,630 
Charges for Services       7,884,750 
Fines and Forfeits        1,071,000 
Interest and Rents        1,533,640 
Other Revenue           627,500 
Operating Transfers - In       6,516,510 
Re-appropriation   

             
Total        $62,049,170; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2009 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 

 
  Building Inspection             $ 2,019,290 

 Council/Executive Administration    3,731,120 
  Engineering       2,414,420 
  Finance       3,150,020 
  Fire        4,451,610 
  Library /Museum      4,189,200 
  Other General Government    2,292,290 
  Police      25,230,580 
  Parks and Recreation     8,844,530 
  Streets                       5,726,110 
   

Total           $62,049,170; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 

 
  Taxes       $ 7,882,000 
  Federal Grants           400,000 
  State Grants         2,447,740 
  Charges for Services          242,000 
  Interest and Rents           407,200 
  Other Revenue           359,000 
  Operating Transfer In       5,775,000 
  Re-appropriation      10,937,460 
 
         Total            $28,450,400; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty 
three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2009 taxable valuation; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
  
 Drains      $1,352,500     
 Engineering            20,000 
 Executive Administration          70,000 
 Fire           583,000 
 Library         1,560,000 
 Museum          320,000 
 Other General Government    2,086,700 
 Police                     790,000 
 Parks and Recreation     4,303,000 
 Streets     16,275,200 
 Public Works          875,000 
 Operating Transfer Out        215,000 
 
 Total                             $28,450,400; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 

 
 Taxes      $ 3,893,330  
 Charges for Services             4,500 
 Interest and Rents            40,000 
 Re-appropriation          150,000 
     
 Total      $4,087,830; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be seventy-five one-
hundredths (.75) mills on the 2009 taxable valuation; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,087,830; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,130,060; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (.50) mills 
on the 2009 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the 2009/10 budget uses 8.03 of the maximum 8.10 
millage rate levy, which was passed by the voters in 2008 with the Charter amendment adding 
Section 9.16.5 to the City Charter; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following budgets 
as shown in the 2009/10 budget document: 

   
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

 Major Road Fund     $  3,313,000  
 Local Road Fund     $  1,772,240 
 Community Development Block Grant Fund $     158,320   
 Troy Community Fair Fund    $     182,630  
 Budget Stabilization Fund    $     300,000  
 2000 MTF Debt Fund    $     230,220 
 Proposal A Debt Fund    $     807,670 
 Proposal B Debt Fund    $  1,480,490 
 Proposal C Debt Fund    $     770,900   
 Special Assessment Fund    $  2,000,000  
 Water Supply System    $15,266,470 
 Sanitary Sewer Fund    $11,737,040 
 Aquatic Center Fund    $     630,290 
 Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund   $  1,067,920 
 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund  $  1,970,300 
 Building Operations     $  1,294,820 
 Information Technology Fund   $  1,729,740 
 Fleet Maintenance Fund    $  4,838,860 
 Workers’ Compensation Fund   $     387,000 
 Compensated Absences Fund   $  4,700,000 
 Unemployment Insurance Fund   $     156,000 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution C-1 Adoption of the 2009/2010 Annual Budget 
 
Resolution #2009-05-142 
Moved by Howrylak 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution C-1 Adoption of the 

2009/2010 Annual Budget by STRIKING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the 2009/10 
budget uses 8.03 of the maximum 8.10 millage rate levy, which was passed by the voters in 
2008 with the Charter amendment adding Section 9.16.5 to the City Charter; and.” 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Schilling, Fleming, Kerwin  
Absent: Beltramini 
 

MOTION FAILED 

 

Vote on Resolution C-1 Adoption of the 2009/2010 Annual Budget 

 
Resolution #2009-05-143 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2009; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $35,908,540 

Licenses and Permits       1,579,000 
Federal Grants             12,100 
State Grants         6,747,500 
Contributions - Local          168,630 
Charges for Services       7,884,750 
Fines and Forfeits        1,071,000 
Interest and Rents        1,533,640 
Other Revenue           627,500 
Operating Transfers - In       6,516,510 
Re-appropriation   

             
Total        $62,049,170; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2009 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 

 
  Building Inspection             $ 2,019,290 

 Council/Executive Administration    3,731,120 
  Engineering       2,414,420 
  Finance       3,150,020 
  Fire        4,451,610 
  Library /Museum      4,189,200 
  Other General Government    2,292,290 
  Police      25,230,580 
  Parks and Recreation     8,844,530 
  Streets                       5,726,110 
   

Total           $62,049,170; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 

 
  Taxes       $ 7,882,000 
  Federal Grants           400,000 
  State Grants         2,447,740 
  Charges for Services          242,000 
  Interest and Rents           407,200 
  Other Revenue           359,000 
  Operating Transfer In       5,775,000 
  Re-appropriation      10,937,460 
 
         Total            $28,450,400; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty 
three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2009 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
  
 Drains      $1,352,500     
 Engineering            20,000 
 Executive Administration          70,000 
 Fire           583,000 
 Library         1,560,000 
 Museum          320,000 
 Other General Government    2,086,700 
 Police                     790,000 
 Parks and Recreation     4,303,000 
 Streets     16,275,200 
 Public Works          875,000 
 Operating Transfer Out        215,000 
 
 Total                             $28,450,400; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 

 
 Taxes      $ 3,893,330  
 Charges for Services             4,500 
 Interest and Rents            40,000 
 Re-appropriation          150,000 
     
 Total      $4,087,830; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be seventy-five one-
hundredths (.75) mills on the 2009 taxable valuation; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,087,830; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,130,060; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (.50) mills 
on the 2009 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the 2009/10 budget uses 8.03 of the maximum 8.10 
millage rate levy, which was passed by the voters in 2008 with the Charter amendment adding 
Section 9.16.5 to the City Charter; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following budgets 
as shown in the 2009/10 budget document: 

  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

 Major Road Fund     $  3,313,000  
 Local Road Fund     $  1,772,240 
 Community Development Block Grant Fund $     158,320   
 Troy Community Fair Fund    $     182,630  
 Budget Stabilization Fund    $     300,000  
 2000 MTF Debt Fund    $     230,220 
 Proposal A Debt Fund    $     807,670 
 Proposal B Debt Fund    $  1,480,490 
 Proposal C Debt Fund    $     770,900   
 Special Assessment Fund    $  2,000,000  
 Water Supply System    $15,266,470 
 Sanitary Sewer Fund    $11,737,040 
 Aquatic Center Fund    $     630,290 
 Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund   $  1,067,920 
 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund  $  1,970,300 
 Building Operations     $  1,294,820 
 Information Technology Fund   $  1,729,740 
 Fleet Maintenance Fund    $  4,838,860 
 Workers’ Compensation Fund   $     387,000 
 Compensated Absences Fund   $  4,700,000 
 Unemployment Insurance Fund   $     156,000 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 

Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Personnel Board 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled  
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2009-05-144   
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
F. (Jack) Witt, III Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations:  Historic District 

Commission; and Historic District Study Committee 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – None Scheduled  
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Resolution #2009-05-145 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Kerwin  

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
Muriel Rounds Term Expires 05/15/2012 

 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 
Leslie Golden Witt Ad Hoc 

 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 2009-

2010 
 
Resolution #2009-05-146 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Municipal League has provided Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
for the City of Troy and the premium charged has been equitable based on the City’s 
experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue the program through the Michigan Municipal League due 
to the positive experience of participating in the MML program;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby APPROVES the net estimated premium cost of $436,057.00 for 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance through the MML for the 2009-2010 fiscal year with a 
resulting final estimated cost to the City of $344,845.00 after applying a dividend distribution 
check in the amount of $91,212.00. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-4 Bid Waiver – City-Wide Dedicated Internet Service  
 
Resolution #2009-05-147 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City has utilized the services of AT&T (previously known as SBC and 
Ameritech) for dedicated internet service since 2002 (Resolution #2005-04-149-E8 and #2002-
02-053-E6 respectively);  
 
WHEREAS, It has been determined that AT&T has proven T1 reliability when compared to 
broadband service from cable providers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Informal quotes were taken from dedicated T1 internet service providers and 
AT&T submitted the lowest price for two bonded T1s with bandwidth of 3MB, which includes a 
router and managed service of this device; 
  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AWARDS a contract to provide two-year requirements of city-wide 
dedicated internet service to AT&T at an estimated total cost of $759.00 per month, with 
options to renew. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak   
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-5 Amendment to Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Christmas Trees, 

Sidewalk Sales and Temporary Merchant Business Fees  
 
Resolution #2009-05-148 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required of the Troy City Code, Section 60.04, Fee Schedule, Christmas 
Trees, Sidewalk Sales and Temporary Merchant Businesses (Chapter 61), as prepared by City 

Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin    
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-6 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code – Water and Sewer Rates 
 
Resolution #2009-05-149 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20 of the 
Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) which includes the typographical correction as set on 

the table, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling     
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-7 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road 

Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and Wattles Road 

Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 Parcel #50 – Sidwell 

#88-20-15-478-015 – Comerica Bank  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2009-05-150 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Comerica Bank, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-15-478-
015, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay, in the amount of $356.200.00, plus closings costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $500.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $200.00 from Comerica Bank, owners of property having Sidwell #88-
20-15-478-015; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield      
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-8 Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Easement for Rochester 

Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 and Request for 

Authorization to Institute Court Action – JMT Properties, LLC/Alif Corporation 
 

(a) Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer  
 
Resolution #2009-05-151 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the proposed Rochester Road Improvements, between 
Torpey and Barclay, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from JMT 
Properties, LLC/Alif Corporation, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-401-069; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate and 
Development Department to make an Unconditioned Offer to acquire a Permanent Public 
Utility Easement for parcel #88-20-22-401-069 in the amount of $1,100.00. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher       
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

(b) Authorization to Institute Court Action 
 
Resolution #2009-05-152 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the proposed Rochester Road Improvements, between 
Torpey and Barclay, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from JMT 
Properties, LLC/Alif Corporation, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-401-069; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney, if 
necessary, to institute condemnation litigation and to execute and deliver any and all 
documents and papers, and to expend necessary funds expedient for the prosecution of such 
proceedings or settlement of such claims on proceedings by and with the express approval of 
this Council. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming        
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-9 Update on City Manager Search 
 
Resolution #2009-05-153 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, City Council received proposals from executive search firms to search for the Troy 
City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, At the April 16, 2009, City Council approved Key Activities and Dates schedule 
requesting key dates that the Council will need to call Special City Council Meetings as part of 
the City Manager Executive Search process, which has been subsequently revised; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES Special City 
Council Meetings and Closed City Council Meetings as outlined below: 
 

 Monday, June 22, 2009, from 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM in the Council Board Room of Troy City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 for the purpose of meeting in CLOSED Session, 
as permitted by MCL 15.268 (f) and MCL 15.268 (h) – MCL 15.243 (e) & (k), to review 
material and deliberate and /or select finalists to be scheduled for interviews; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 13 - 

 Monday, July 6, 2009, from 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM, in the Council Board Room of Troy City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 for the purpose of meeting in CLOSED Session, 
as permitted by MCL 15.268 (f) and MCL 15.268 (h) – MCL 15.243 (e) & (k) to review 
material and deliberate and finalize interview questions and protocol; 

 Tuesday, July 7, 2009 from 5:30 PM until 7:30 PM, in Room 304 of the Community Center, 
3179 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084 for the purpose of conducting a Town Hall Forum where 
Council, public, employees and news media can meet and greet the finalists; 

 Wednesday, July 8, 2009, at 9:00 AM, in the Council Board Room, of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 for the purpose of conducting public interviews. Each interview 
will last approximately one hour and fifteen minutes; 

 Thursday, July 9, 2009, at 7:00 PM, in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 for the purpose of deliberating and selecting a new City 
Manager, contingent upon completion of reference and background checks, negotiation of 
contract and a starting date. 

 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak       
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2009-05-154 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Items F-2 and F-6, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin        
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamation:  

 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 14 - 

a) Mental Health Month – May, 2009 
  

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Roof Replacement 

Engineering Field Office        
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to replace the roof at the 
Engineering Field Office located at 3645 Crooks Road to the low total bidder, Signature Design 
Building Company, LLC of Fowlerville, MI, who will complete the project with a subcontractor, 
Moore Roofing, for an estimated total cost of $14,317.00, at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened April 7, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Irrigation System 

Restoration – Crooks Road/Crescent Ridge Subdivision        
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials 
and equipment to restore the irrigation system on the west side of Crooks Road along the 
Crescent Ridge Subdivision to the low bidder, Michigan Automatic Sprinkler, Inc. of Commerce, 
MI, for an estimated total cost of $12,913.00, with unit prices provided in the schedule of values 

submitted at the time of bid submission, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 09-7 – Beach, 

Ring and Technology Pavement Rehabilitation    
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 09-7, Beach, Ring and 
Technology Road Rehabilitation to Asphalt Specialists, Inc., 1780 E. Highwood, Pontiac, MI 
48340 at an estimated total cost of $298,384.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 15 - 

F-5 Correction to City Council Minutes for Regular Meeting of December 15, 2008 
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the correction of a typographical error 
made in the Regular Meeting Minutes of the December 15, 2008, City Council by inserting Roll 
Call. 
 

F-7 Rescind Contract – Aggregates, Item 7) Crushed Concrete 3”-6” – Resolution 

#2009-04-129-F-4a 
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-7 
 
WHEREAS, On April 6, 2009, one-year contracts to provide Aggregates with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional year was awarded on an item by item basis to the low bidders: 
Metropolitan Demolition of Romulus, MI, Item #7, and Bedrock Maintenance Services of 
Ortonville, MI, Items #1-6 and #8-13 (Resolution #2009-04-129-F-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Metropolitan Demolition has not provided the insurance certificate(s) as required 
after numerous attempts by City management;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to provide Aggregates under Item 7) Crushed Concrete 3” – 6”, with an option to 

renew for one (1) additional year from Metropolitan Demolition, and hereby AUTHORIZES City 
staff to utilize the informal three (3) quote process for future purchases of crushed concrete, 3” 
– 6”. 
 

F-8 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-8 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.167 of Chapter 5 and Section 6 of Chapter 20 of the Ordinance Code of 
the City of Troy require that delinquent payments and invoices, as of April 1

st
 of each year, 

shall be reported and the City Council shall certify the same to the City Assessor who shall 
assess the same on the next annual City Tax Roll, to be collected as provided for collection of 
City Taxes;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 10.8 of the Troy City Charter provides for the collection of delinquent 
invoices through property tax collection procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, A list of individual properties is on file in the Office of the Treasurer and comprises 
a summation of totals as follows: 
 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 16 - 

 General Fund Invoices 
  Including Penalties    $  19,635.96 
 Special Assessments  
  Including Penalties & Interest      5,284.24 
 Water & Sewer Accounts 
  Including Penalties      787,408.62 
 Total            $ 812,328.82 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City 
Assessor to assess these delinquent accounts on the annual City Tax Roll. 
 

F-9 2009 Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 
 
Resolution #2009-05-154-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the 2009 Department of Justice Byrne 

Grant and hereby APPROVES the interlocal agreement with Oakland County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Police 
Department to receive items needed and approved under the grant guidelines.  
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2009-05-155  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of April 20, 2009 as corrected; the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special City 
Council Meeting of April 27, 2009 as submitted; and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special City 
Council Meeting of May 4, 2009 as submitted. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin , Schilling        
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

F-6 Allocation of 2008 and 2009 Tri-Party Funds – Cost Participation Agreement for 

2009 Concrete Program 
 
Resolution #2009-05-156 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Cost Participation Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the Board of Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the 
2009 Concrete Program at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $198,392.00, and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield           
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 

a) Rezoning Application – Harlan Shopping Plaza, North Side of Wattles, West of John R, 
Section 14 – B-1 to B-3 (File Number Z-736) – May 18, 2009  

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted   

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments 
 
Council Member Kerwin indicated that it seems the Michigan Municipal League (MML) has 
been taking a different aspect of the prosperity issues in their discussions. She continued by 
referencing an article from the most recent MML publication entitled Diversity as an Asset and 
Positioning Ourselves for Twenty-first Century Communities. She then quoted the following 
from the article: “Those communities that promote, seek, welcome and integrate people of all 
religions, ethnicities, national origins and races will be seen as the right kind of place for this 
key demographic as well as for global businesses.” She added that coincidentally she also 
attended Detroit Interfaith Group’s 5

th
 Annual National Day of Prayer – Lift Every Voice which 

included a number of different ways to pray from our community. 
 
Council Member Broomfield added that the Michigan Municipal Leage publication also included 
a well written article by Council Member Beltramini. 
 
Mayor Schilling reported that she, Council Member Kerwin, Council Member Eisenbacher, 
Acting City Manager John Szerlag, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Brian Murphy and City Attorney Lori Bloom were at  Compact Power, Inc. (CPI) today in regard 
to the development of the lithium-ion battery development program for General Motors Chevy 
Volt. She added that Governor Jennifer Granholm and US Secretary of Labor, Hilda Solis also 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 18 - 

attended and noted that they both had positive things to say about the City of Troy. The Mayor 
invited the Secretary of Labor to come back to visit Automation Alley and see for herself how 
the abutting counties are working together. She added that they also discussed how the 
talented unemployed people are currently being retrained in new careers. 
 
Mayor Schilling reminded the public that the Police Memorial Ceremony is scheduled for 
Friday, May 15

th
 at 10:00 AM in the Veterans Memorial Plaza in front of City Hall. 

 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Special/Final – March 20, 2008  

b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Special/Final – March 31, 2008 

c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – October 21, 2008  

d) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – November 17, 2008 

e) Troy Daze Committee/Final – January 27, 2009 

f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – March 17, 2009  

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – April 1, 2009 

h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – April 7, 2009  

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 7, 2009 

j) Planning Commission/Draft – April 14, 2009  

k) Planning Commission/Final – April 14, 2009 

l) Special Joint Birmingham Planning Board/Troy Planning Commission – April 16, 2009  

m) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – April 21, 2009 

n) Troy Daze Committee/Draft – April 28, 2009 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-2 Department Reports:  

a) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – March 31, 2009  

b) Assessing Department – 2009 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report  
Noted and Filed 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Chief from Novi Police Chief, David Molloy Regarding 
Assistance Received from Captain Colleen Mott  

b) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Chief from Southfield Police Chief, Dr. Joseph E. 
Thomas, Jr. Regarding Assistance with Arrest  

c) Message to Chief Mayer from Price Funeral Home Expressing Gratitude for Assistance 
Received from Sgt. Dan Daniel 

d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Erik Mott Regarding Internship in the Police 
Department and Special Thanks to Wendell Moore and Officers Mouch, Huck, 
Warzecka, and Whiteside  

e) Letter of Thanks to Police Department from Eugene Sherizen, Owner of Mini Storage of 
Troy Regarding Outstanding Police Patrol 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  

a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #09094 – May, 2009 as Mental 
Health Month in Oakland County  

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 19 - 

J-5 Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company – 

Case No. U-15417-R 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6 Communication Regarding the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – Mid Town 

Square Brownfield Plan-Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7 Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Licensing Division 

Regarding Granite City – 699 West Big Beaver Road 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-8 Communication from Library Director Cathy Russ and Museum Manager Loraine 

Campbell Regarding Civil War Camp for Eighth Graders 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-9 Communication from Library Director Cathy Russ Announcing the Grand Opening 

of Library Café – Cup and Chaucer 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-10 Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Stakeholder 

Interviews – Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite (File Number: ZOTA 236) 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-11 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm and City Clerk Tonni 

Bartholomew Regarding Charter Revision Referrals 
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 11, 2009 

 

- 20 - 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:52 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

HOMES FOR OUR TROOPS 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 

WHEREAS, As a non-profit organization founded in 2004, “Homes for Our Troops” is strongly 
committed to helping those men and women who have selflessly given to their country and have 
returned home with serious disabilities and injuries; and  
 
WHEREAS, The organization assists severely injured Servicemen and Women and their immediate 
families by raising donations of money, building materials and professional labor and then 
coordinating the process of building a new home or adapting an existing home for handicapped 
accessibility. The finished home is then given to the veteran by “Homes for Our Troops,” striving to 
welcome them home with honor and respect; and   
 
WHEREAS, Through these efforts “Homes for Our Troops” has furthered those ideals that 
contribute to a better community; and 
 
WHEREAS, “Home for Our Troops” sponsored their 6th Annual Veterans Fundraiser in Troy on May 
9th to raise money for their worthwhile organization to honor local injured veterans; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for the service of this 
distinguished organization.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented to “Homes for Our 
Troops” as a lasting expression of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for its contribution to the 
betterment of the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
Presented this 18th day of May 2009. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



 
May 6, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Overhead Door  
   Maintenance and Repair 
 

Background 

 On April 23, 2009, bids were opened to furnish all necessary materials, labor and equipment to provide 
three-year requirements of repairs and general maintenance of overhead doors at various locations in the 
City of Troy. 

 80 vendors were notified via the MITN system with six bidders responding.     

 The bids were examined and compared to the bid specifications.  

 The contract will provide for annual and semi-annual maintenance at buildings used by the Fire 
Department, Public Works Department, Parks and Recreation, Aquatic Center, and City Hall.   

 Michigan Independent Door Company of Troy was the low total bidder. 

 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in furnishing the services as 
specified. 

 The City is awarding this contract on a low total basis due to potential conflicts with vendors if an award 
was made to one vendor for maintenance and another for repairs.   

 

Financial Considerations 

 Funds for these services are available in the various departmental operating budgets for Contractual 
Services. 

 

Legal Considerations 

 ITB-COT 09-21, Repairs and Maintenance of Overhead Doors was competitively bid as required by City 
Charter and Code, and completely meets our bid requirements. 

 The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 

 

Policy Considerations 

 The award of this bid supports the volunteer firefighters who help to make this a safe community. 
(Outcome Statement I) 

 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance of infrastructure and quality of life venues. (Outcome 
Statement II) 

 

Options 

 City management recommends awarding a contract to furnish all necessary materials, labor and 
equipment to provide three-year requirements of repairs and general maintenance of overhead doors to 
the low total bidder, Michigan Independent Door Company of Troy, MI for an estimated cost of $19,900.00 
per year, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 23, 2009, to expire May 31, 2012.   

 
 
Prepared by Keith Lenderman, Assistant Fire Chief 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-21
Opening Date -- 4/23/09 jh/sl BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/23/09 OVERHEAD DOORS - Maintenance/Repair

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL -- Furnish All Necessary Materials, Labor, and Equipment to provide Repairs and General
      Maintenance of Overhead Doors at Various Locations in the City of Troy for Three (3) Years.

PROPOSAL A: Manual Doors - Maintenance/Repair
PARTS: Discount of 0 % 10 % 30 %

Parts Price List MIDC #42409 Exhibit A
Dated 1/1/2006 4/20/2009 4/22/2009

PARKS & RECREATION
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year

PROPOSAL B: Motorized Doors - Maintenance/Repair
PARTS: Discount of 0 % 10 % 30 %

Parts Price List MIDC #42409 Exhibit A
Dated 1/1/2006 & 4/1/2009 4/20/2009 4/22/2009

PROPOSAL B1:
FIRE DEPARTMENT
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL B2:
DPW BUILDING
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL B3:
PARKS & RECREATION
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL B4:
AQUATIC CENTER
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance

PROPOSAL B5:
CITY HALL & DISTRICT COURT
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL B6:
COMMUNITY CENTER
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL C: REGULAR & EMERGENCY REPAIRS

PROPOSAL C1: Repairs within 24 hours
REGULAR TIME: Man Hours
(Est. 300 Hours) Crew Size

PROPOSAL C1 - ESTIMATED TOTAL:
   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: per Year

Michigan Independent
Door Company

Garrett Door Company

350.00$                        630.00$                           

550.00$                        750.00$                           

16,500$                        15,000$                           16,500$                         

450.00$                         

625.00$                        925.00$                           1,050.00$                      
1,250.00$                     1,850.00$                        2,100.00$                      

850.00$                         
1,100.00$                     1,500.00$                        1,700.00$                      

225.00$                        
450.00$                        

385.00$                           425.00$                         
770.00$                           850.00$                         

50.00$                          

75.00$                          
150.00$                        

150.00$                           250.00$                         
300.00$                           

50.00$                          130.00$                           200.00$                         
25.00$                          65.00$                             100.00$                         

50.00$                             
1

55.00$                           
1

500.00$                         

150.00$                           200.00$                         

19,900$                        20,330$                           22,500$                         

Detroit Rolling Door &
Gate, Inc.

55.00$                          
1



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-21
Opening Date -- 4/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/23/09 OVERHEAD DOORS - Maintenance/Repair

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL C2: Emergency Repairs
Regular Time: 55.00$       50.00$         55.00$        
Overtime: 82.50$       75.00$         82.00$        
Holiday Time: 110.00$    100.00$       110.00$     
Crew Size: 1 1 1 or 2

PROPOSAL C3: TRAVEL TIME
Repair Call Complete:

SITE INSPECTION -- Y/N Yes Yes Yes
Date 4/15 & 4/17/09 current supplier 4/21/2009

CONTACT INFORMATION --
Hours of Operation: 24 M-S M - F   8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM   M-F
24 Hr Phone Number 248-641-9106 248-789-4234 248-398-3755

INSURANCE -- Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS:

DELIVERY

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ATTEST:
Sam Lamerato DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

Debra Painter-Deagle
MaryAnn Hays ____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 09-21 OverheadDoors-Maintenance-Repair

Per repair call

Michigan Independent Garrett Door Company
Door Company

AS SPECIFIED

AS SPECIFIED

27.50$                         25.00$                             27.50$                          

Net 30 Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

Detroit Rolling Door &
Gate, Inc.



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-21
Opening Date -- 4/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/23/09 OVERHEAD DOORS - Maintenance/Repair

VENDOR NAME: Overhead Door West
Commercial, Inc.

PROPOSAL -- Furnish All Necessary Materials, Labor, and Equipment to provide Repairs and General
      Maintenance of Overhead Doors at Various Locations in the City of Troy for Three (3) Years.

PROPOSAL A: Manual Doors - Maintenance/Repair
PARTS: Discount of 40 % 35 % Cost +15 %

Parts Price List  F J F Door Blank Enclosed
Dated 4/13/2009 4/22/2009 4/23/2009

PARKS & RECREATION
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year

PROPOSAL B: Motorized Doors - Maintenance/Repair
PARTS: Discount of 40 % 35 % Cost +15 %

Parts Price List  F J F Door Blank Enclosed
Dated 4/13/2009 4/22/2009 4/23/2009

PROPOSAL B1:
FIRE DEPARTMENT
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL B2:
DPW BUILDING
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year

PROPOSAL B3:
PARKS & RECREATION
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year

PROPOSAL B4:
AQUATIC CENTER
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance

PROPOSAL B5:
CITY HALL & DISTRICT COURT
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year
PROPOSAL B6:
COMMUNITY CENTER
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: Maintenance
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:   Per Year

PROPOSAL C: REGULAR & EMERGENCY REPAIRS

PROPOSAL C1: Repairs within 24 hours
REGULAR TIME: Man Hours
(Est. 300 Hours) Crew Size

PROPOSAL C1 - ESTIMATED TOTAL:
   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: per Year

24,900$                         

F J F Door Sales
Company, Inc.

990.00$                        

430.00$                        

2

595.00$                        945.00$                           1,599.00$                      

2,450.00$                     

1,740.00$                     

640.00$                           1,174.00$                      495.00$                        

140.00$                        

215.00$                        

1,280.00$                        

125.00$                        

21,000$                        24,000$                           

7,867.00$                      

640.00$                           3,139.00$                      
1,280.00$                        

1,225.00$                     

870.00$                        

144.00$                         
240.00$                           288.00$                         

80.00$                             

6,278.00$                      

83.00$                           
Blank

2,348.00$                      

200.00$                           

Crane Technologies

350.00$                         

320.00$                           556.00$                         
640.00$                           1,112.00$                      

640.00$                           
1,280.00$                        

3,933.00$                      

27,595$                        29,865$                           44,742$                         

1

120.00$                           
250.00$                        

70.00$                          



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-21
Opening Date -- 4/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/23/09 OVERHEAD DOORS - Maintenance/Repair

VENDOR NAME: Overhead Door West Crane Technologies

PROPOSAL C2: Emergency Repairs
Regular Time: 70.00$       120.00$       83.00$        
Overtime: 140.00$     180.00$       106.00$      
Holiday Time: 140.00$     180.00$       132.00$      
Crew size: 2 2 Blank

PROPOSAL C3: TRAVEL TIME
Repair Call Complete:

SITE INSPECTION -- Y/N Yes No Yes
Date 4/10, 4/13, 4/14/09 4/15/09

CONTACT INFORMATION --
Hours of Operation: M - F   7:30 AM to 5 PM 7 AM to 5 PM  M-F M - F  (0700 - 1530)
24 Hr Phone Number 586-468-9787 248-669-5880 248-652-8700

INSURANCE -- Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS:

DELIVERY

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 09-21 OverheadDoors-Maintenance-Repair

Commercial Inc.

AS SPECIFIED

F J F Door Sales 
Company, Inc.

AS SPECIFIED

Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30

40.00$                             41.00$                           35.00$                          



TC  o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2009 agendas\tia membership renewal request.doc 

 

 
 
 May 6, 2009                            
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager 
    John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager 
    Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
    Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of 

Oakland County 
 
 
Background: 
 
The City has been a member of the TIA since 1975.  The TIA is a private non-profit organization that 
is responsive to the problems and needs of local traffic officials.  They are a source for traffic facts, 
including traffic crashes and traffic operations data.  The City of Troy obtains citywide traffic crash 
statistics (including the intersection and road segment crash reports and ranking, county traffic crash 
trends, location specific crash details, and alcohol related statistics and as a TIA member they are 
provided without charge.  The TIA works with the Troy Police Department on several enforcement-
related projects and grants.  They facilitated the Police Department in obtaining over $31,000 last 
year in federal grants for alcohol and seat belt endorsement.  The TIA also works with our adjacent 
communities to improve traffic in the general area that can be a secondary benefit to the City.  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The renewal membership fee for 2009 is $24,400, a decrease of $800 from 2008.  The funds are 
available in the Traffic Engineering budget, account number 4437958. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
N/A 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
Enhance the livability and safety in the community. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 

TLB/G:Liquor Licenses\Wal-Mart 2001 W Maple\Council Action Form 2009.04. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 

 
May 14, 2009  
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
Officer James M. Feld 

 
SUBJECT: Application to Transfer a SDD License Only to Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited 

Partnership 
Background:  
■ Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited Partnership request transfer ownership of escrowed 2008 SDD 

license only from Whole Foods Market Group, Inc.; and transfer location from 4052 Rochester to 
2001 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County to be held in conjunction with existing SDM 
license. {MLCC Req #490232} 

■ On April 13, 2009, Sandy Cotter, Attorney for the applicant, and Nicole Chase, Troy Wal-Mart 
Store Manager, answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee 

■ Ms. Cotter and Ms. Chase explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to allow 
the Troy Wal-Mart Store to sell spirits at their store which is currently licensed to sell beer and 
wine only.  It was also explained the store would be configured to assure the sale of spirits would 
be in compliance with the Troy City Ordinance. 

■ The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Legal Considerations:  
■ The request complies with all applicable Troy City ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission rules. 
■ The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
Policy Considerations:  
■ This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
■ The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             APRIL 13, 2009  

 Page 1 of 3

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, April 
13, 2009 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:05  p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Officer James Feld 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Payne & Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2009-04-004  
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Payne and Ukrainec at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of April 13, 2009 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of  February 9, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-04-005 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 9, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             APRIL 13, 2009  

 Page 2 of 3

 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited Partnership request transfer ownership of 

escrowed 2008 SDD license only from Whole Foods Market Group, Inc.; 
and transfer location from 4052 Rochester to 2001 W. Maple, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County to be held in conjunction with existing SDM license. 
{MLCC Req #490232}   Approval of this request would allow for the sale of 
spirits (21% alcohol and higher) for consumption off premise. The current 
license is in escrow in Troy. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney Sandy Cotter and 
Wal-Mart store manager Nicole Chase. 
 
Ms. Cotter spoke to the Committee and gave the history of the liquor license in 
question.  Diagrams and photographs were distributed showing the Wal-Mart store 
and the secure area where liquor will be displayed.  An initial liquor inventory of 
$20,000 to $25,000 is anticipated.  Ms. Cotter and Ms. Chase both answered 
questions from the Committee with regard to the October 2, 2008 compliance 
violation.   
 
Resolution #LC2009-04-006 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited Partnership be allowed to transfer 
ownership of escrowed 2008 SDD license only from Whole Foods Market Group, 
Inc.; and transfer location from 4052 Rochester to 2001 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County to be held in conjunction with existing SDM license.   

  
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             APRIL 13, 2009  

 Page 3 of 3

 
Tabled Items 
 
Officer Feld reported that M & M Troy, Inc. still has not submitted an inventory 
layout to the Fire Department.  Officer Feld plans to contact them this week. 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney Susan Lancaster spoke briefly about the recent liquor 
violation at Lebanese Grill, 1600 Rochester Road.  She also mentioned the 
upcoming Michigan Liquor Control Commission event sponsored by the Troy 
Community Coalition.  The flyer will be emailed to all Committee members. 
 
                                                                           
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 







 
 
Date May 14, 2009 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Mark 
Wolodkowicz, President & Program Director for Free Desire, Inc. 

  

Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Mark Wolodkowicz, President & Program Director of Free 

Desire, Inc., seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of 
obtaining a charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City 
Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests. 

 

Options: 
 

  City Council can approve request. 
 
Attachment: 
 

  Document package supporting the request for recognition as a non-profit organization. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



































































































campbellld
Text Box
F-08









 

 
 
                             
Date    May 13, 2009 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Asst. City Manager Economic Development and Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT: American Public Works Association Voluntary Accreditation 
 
Background: 
 
 There have been communication and discussion in reference to the American Public Works 

Association Voluntary Accreditation. It is the intent of this report to detail information about this 
accreditation and provide the process from start to finish and continuous reaccreditation. 
 

 The Voluntary Accreditation process provides review and assessment of many aspects of 
government agencies. These include but are not limited to organization, personnel, management, 
planning, communications, record keeping, construction, buildings, facilities management, 
equipment, solid waste, storm water, traffic engineering, cemeteries, parks, right of way, water 
and sewer and many other operations.  

 
 Attached are copies of the Application for Voluntary Accreditation,  Checklist and Application for 

requesting Site Visit Evaluation and  Voluntary Re-accreditation, A brief description of the 
accreditation concept and the Public Works Accreditation Process Guide 
 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  Accreditation Application Fees are based on population and the number of function areas. The 

fees for the City of Troy are estimated to be approximately $11,000. The Assessment process 
would require City of Troy staff time estimated to be approximately 1,500 hours over the 2.5 to 3 
year process. Staff involvement is at all levels and staff costs would likely range from $30,000 to 
$40,000.   
 

 The accreditation once received is for a 4 year period. Semi-annual updates are required and the 
Reaccreditation Application Fees are approximately $11,000. At this time it is difficult to calculate 
the long term staff time and costs that will be required for updates and reaccreditation.  

 
CC TR  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01











































































































































































































 

 
 
DATE:    May 12, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, Acting City Manager  

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 
    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
 
SUBJECT:   City of Farmington  

Abandoned Residential Property Registration Ordinance 
 
Background: 
 
 The maintenance of structures within the City of Troy is regulated by a number of ordinances of 

the City Code.  This includes Property Maintenance Ordinance, Litter Ordinance, Weed 
Ordinance, Nuisance Ordinance, and Fire Prevention Code.  City Council asked that we look at 
the abandoned property registration ordinance that the City of Farmington has recently adopted to 
see if there is a need or desire to adopt similar language in the City of Troy Ordinances.  A copy 
of the ordinance is attached for your reference. 
 
In general most of the provisions contained within the Farmington Ordinance are currently 
contained within the Troy Ordinances in one form or another with the exception of three items.  
The first is a requirement that the owners of vacant properties must annually and within 10 days 
of ownership or vacancy of a home, register their ownership of a vacant residential property.  
Their fee for this registration is $250 per calendar year.  Owners that fail to register can be fined in 
addition to the cost of registration.  We have a requirement that the ownership of vacant property 
be registered with the City within 60 days, however, we do not charge a fee for such registration. 
 
The second is a requirement that the properties be maintained to a “neighborhood standard”.  
This requires the properties to be maintained to a level equal to the standard on a majority of 
homes within 300’ of the subject home.  Even though there may be homes within that 300’ 
distance that are legally maintained to a lesser standard, the vacant home would be required to 
be maintained to this potentially higher average standard.  We apply the same minimum standard 
to all homes regardless of their state of occupancy.   
 
The third requirement is for a new Certificate of Occupancy to be issued before a vacant home 
can be re-occupied.  This is regardless of whether there were any conditions at the home that 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-02



would make a previous certificate invalid.  We would only require a new certificate of occupancy if 
the previous certificate was deemed to be invalid due to the conditions of the structure. 
 
In general, we believe that the current City of Troy Ordinances sufficiently address the conditions 
of homes within the City of Troy and will be further enhanced when the new edition of the 
Property Maintenance Code is adopted by City Council. 
 
We will be happy to discuss this matter further if you desire. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

CITY OF FARMINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. C-740-2009 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FARMINGTON CITY CODE, 

CHAPTER 19, NUISANCE, TO ADD A NEW ARTICLE, ARTICLE IX, 
“ABANDONED RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY REGISTRATION AND 

MAINTENANCE” 
 
 

THE CITY OF FARMINGTON ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1 of Ordinance 
 
Chapter 19, Nuisance, of the Farmington Code of Ordinances, is hereby amended to add Article 
IX, Abandoned Residential Property Registration and Maintenance,” to read as follows: 
 
Section 19-200. Purpose. 
 
It is the purpose and intent of the City of Farmington through the adoption of this ordinance, to 
establish an abandoned residential property registration program as a mechanism to protect 
residential neighborhoods from becoming blighted through the lack of adequate maintenance and 
security of abandoned properties. 
 
Section 19-201. Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this ordinance, certain words and phrases are defined as follows: 
 
A. “Abandoned” means a property that is vacant and is under a current complaint for 

foreclosure or notice of foreclosure and/or notice of trustee’s sale, pending tax sale, 
and/or properties that have been the subject of a foreclosure sale where the title was 
retained by the beneficiary of a mortgage involved in the foreclosure and any properties 
transferred under a deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale. 

 
B. “Accessible property” means a property that is accessible through a 

compromised/breached gate, fence, wall, etc. 
 
C. “Accessible structure” means a structure/building that is unsecured and/or breached in 

such a way as to allow access to the interior space by unauthorized persons. 
 
D. “Agreement” means any agreement or written instrument which provides that title to 

residential property shall be transferred or conveyed from one owner to another owner 
after the sale, trade, transfer, or exchange. 



E. “Assignment of rents” means an instrument that transfers the beneficial interest under a 
mortgage from one lender/entity to another. 

 
F. “Beneficiary” means a lender under a note secured by a mortgage. 
 
G. “Buyer” means any person, co-partnership, association, corporation, or fiduciary who 

agrees to transfer anything of value in consideration for property described in an 
agreement of sale, as defined in this subsection. 

 
H. “Dangerous building” means any building/structure that is in violation of any condition 

referenced in Chapter 19, Article II of the City Code. 
 
I. “Days” means consecutive calendar days. 
 
J. “Deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale” means a recorded document that transfers ownership of 

a property from the trustor to the holder of a mortgage upon consent of the beneficiary of 
the mortgage. 

 
K. “Default” means the failure to fulfill a contractual obligation, monetary, or conditional. 
 
L. “Distressed” means a property that is under a current notice of default and/or notice of 

trustee’s sale and/or pending tax assessor’s lien sale or has been foreclosed upon by the 
trustee or has been conveyed to the beneficiary/trustee via a deed in lieu of 
foreclosure/sale. 

 
M. “Evidence of vacancy” means any condition that on its own or combined with other 

conditions present would lead a reasonable person to believe that the property is vacant.  
Such conditions include, but are not limited to, overgrown and/or dead vegetation, 
accumulation of newspapers, circulars, flyers and/nor mail, past due utility notices and/or 
disconnected utilities, accumulation of trash, junk and/or debris, the absence of window 
coverings such as curtains, blinds and/or shutters, the absence of furnishings and/or 
personal items consistent with residential habitation, statements by neighbors, passersby, 
delivery agents, government employees that the property is vacant. 

 
N. “Foreclosure” means the process by which a property, placed as security for a real estate 

loan, is sold at auction to satisfy the debt if the trustor (borrower) defaults. 
 
O. “Local” means within 40 road/driving miles distance of the subject property. 
 
P. “Mortgage” means an instrument by which title to real estate is transferred to a third 

party trustee as security for a real estate loan. 
 
Q. “Neighborhood standard” means those conditions that are present on a simple majority of 

properties within a 300-foot radius of an individual property.  A property that is the 
subject of a neighborhood standard comparison, or any other abandoned property within 
the 300-foot radius, shall not be counted toward the simple majority. 

 2



 
R. “Out of area” means in excess of 40 road/driving miles distance of the subject property. 
 
S. “Owner” means any person, co-partnership, association, corporation, or fiduciary having 

a legal or equitable title or any interest in any real property. 
 
T. “Owner of record” means the person having recorded title to the property. 
 
U. “Property” means any unimproved or improved real property, or portion thereof, situated 

in the Township and includes the buildings or structures located on the property 
regardless of condition. 

 
V. “Residential building” means any improved real property, or portion thereof, situated in 

the City, designed, or permitted to be used for dwelling purposes, and shall include the 
buildings and structures located on such improved real property.  This includes any real 
property being offered for sale, trade, transfer, or exchange as “residential” whether or 
not it is legally permitted and/or zoned for such use. 

 
W. “Secure” or “secured” means such measures as may be directed by the City of 

Farmington Code Official or his or her designee that render the property inaccessible to 
unauthorized persons, including but not limited to the repairing of fences and walls, 
chaining/padlocking of gates, and the repair or boarding of doors, broken windows and/or 
other openings.  In the case of broken windows, securing means the reglazing or boarding 
of the window.  Boarding shall be completed to a minimum of the current HUD securing 
standards at the time the boarding is completed or required.  In addition, “secure” or 
“secured” means closing and locking windows, doors (walk-through, sliding and garage), 
gates and any other opening of such size that it may allow a person to access the interior 
of a property and/or structure(s). 

 
X. “Trustee” means the person, firm, or corporation holding a mortgage on a property. 
 
Y. “Trustor” means a borrower under a mortgage, who deeds property to a trustee as 

security for the payment of a debt. 
 
Z. “Vacant” means a building/structure that is not legally occupied. 
 
Section 19-202. Registration. 
 
Any beneficiary/trustee, who holds a mortgage on a property located within the City, shall 
perform an inspection, to the extent permitted by law or under the mortgage, of the property that 
is the security for the mortgage, upon default by the trustor, within five (5) days after either filing 
a complaint for foreclosure (if foreclosure is by judicial action) or publishing a notice of 
foreclosure (if foreclosure is by advertisement).  If the property is found to be vacant or shows 
evidence of vacancy, it is, by this ordinance, deemed abandoned and the beneficiary/trustee shall, 
within 10 days of the inspection, register the property with the City of Farmington Code Official 
head or his or her designee on forms provided by the City. 

 3



 
If the property is occupied but remains in default it shall be inspected, to the extent permitted by 
law and the mortgage, by the beneficiary/trustee, or his designee, monthly until (1)  the trustor or 
other party remedies the default or (2)  it is found to be vacant or shows evidence of vacancy at 
which time it is deemed abandoned, and the trustee shall, within 10 days of that inspection, 
register the property with the City of Farmington Code Official head or his or her designee on 
forms provided by the City. 
 
In either case the registration shall contain the name of the beneficiary/trustee (corporation or 
individual), the direct street/office mailing address of the beneficiary/trustee (no P.O. boxes), a 
direct contact name and phone number for the beneficiary/trustee and, in the case of a 
corporation or out-of-area beneficiary/trustee, the local property management company 
responsible for the security, maintenance, and marketing of the property.  Registration fees will 
not be prorated. 
 
An annual registration fee shall accompany the registration form.  The fee and registration shall 
be valid for the calendar year, or remaining portion of the calendar year, in which the registration 
was initially required.  Subsequent registrations and fees are due January 1st of each year and 
must be received no later than January 31st of the year due. 
 
This section shall also apply to properties that have been the subject of a foreclosure sale where 
the title was transferred to the beneficiary of a mortgage involved in the foreclosure and any 
properties transferred under a deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale.  Such properties shall be registered 
with the City in accordance with the terms of this section upon transfer even if occupied at the 
time of the transfer. 
 
Properties subject to this ordinance shall remain under the annual registration requirement, 
security, and maintenance standards of this section as long as they remain vacant. 
 
Any person, firm, or corporation that has registered a property under this ordinance must report 
any change of information contained in the registration to the City of Farmington Building 
Department within 10 days of the change. 
 
Section 19-203. Maintenance requirements. 
 
Vacant and abandoned properties subject to this section shall be, in comparison to the 
neighborhood standard, kept free of weeds, dry bush, dead vegetation, trash, junk, debris, 
building materials, any accumulation of newspapers, circulars, flyers, notices, except those 
required by federal, state, or local law, discarded personal items including but not limited to 
furniture, clothing, large and small appliances, printed material or any other items that give the 
appearance that the property is abandoned. 
 
The property shall be maintained free of graffiti, tagging, or similar markings by removal or 
painting over with an exterior grade paint that matches the color of the exterior of the structure. 
 

 4



Visible front and side yards shall be landscaped and maintained to the neighborhood standard at 
the time registration was required.  Landscape includes, but is not limited to, grass, ground 
covers, bushes, shrubs, hedges or similar plantings, decorative rock or bark or artificial turf/sod 
designed specifically for residential installation.  Landscape does not include weeds, gravel, 
broken concrete, asphalt, decomposed granite, plastic sheeting, mulch, indoor-outdoor carpet or 
any similar material. 
 
Maintenance includes but is not limited to regular watering, irrigation, cutting, pruning, and 
moving of required landscape and removal of all trimmings. 
 
Pools and spas shall be kept in working order so the water remains clear and free of pollutants 
and debris or drained and kept dry.  In either case properties with pools and/or spas must comply 
with the minimum security fencing requirements of the State of Michigan. 
 
Adherence to this section does not relieve the beneficiary/trustee or property owner of any 
obligations set forth in any covenants, conditions, and restrictions and/or homeowners’ 
association rules and regulations which may apply to the property. 
 
Section 19-204. Security requirements. 
 
Properties subject to this section shall be secured so as not to be accessible to unauthorized 
persons. 
 
If the property is owned by a corporation and/or out-of-area beneficiary/trustee/owner, a local 
property management company shall be contracted to perform weekly inspections to verify that 
the requirements of this section, and any other applicable laws, are being met. 
 
The local property management company shall inspect the property on a weekly basis to 
determine if the property is in compliance with the requirements of this ordinance. 
 
Section 19-205. Additional authority. 
 
In addition to the enforcement remedies established in this Chapter 19 or in Chapter 24 of the 
City of Farmington Code of Ordinances, the City of Farmington Code Official head or his or her 
designee shall have the authority to require the beneficiary/trustee/owner and/or owner of record 
of any property affected by this section to implement additional maintenance and/or security 
measures including but not limited to securing any/all door, window, or other openings, 
installing additional security lighting, increasing on-site inspection frequency, employment of an 
on-site security guard or other measures as may be reasonably required to arrest the decline of 
the property. 
 
Section 19-206. Fees. 
 
The fee for registering an abandoned residential property shall be set by resolution of the City of 
Farmington. 
 

 5



 
 
Section 19-207. Right of Entry. 
 
If the owner has failed to secure a property and it has been secured by the City, the City and/or 
its contracted agent, may enter or re-enter the structure to conduct necessary inspections to 
assure compliance with the requirements of this Code and to determine if there are emergency or 
hazardous health and safety conditions in existence. 
 
Section 19-208. Re-Occupancy. 
 
An abandoned residential structure shall not be occupied until a Certificate of Occupancy has 
been issued by the City, and all violations have been corrected in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of the Michigan Building/Residential Code, Michigan Electrical Code, Michigan 
Mechanical Code, Michigan Plumbing Code, International Property Maintenance Code and 
applicable provisions of the City of Farmington Code of Ordinances.  All mechanical, electrical, 
plumbing, and structural systems shall be certified by a licensed contractor as being in good 
repair.  In addition, a Certificate of Occupancy shall not be issued until all outstanding costs, 
assessments and/or liens owed to the City have been paid in full. 
 
Section 19-209. Violation/Abatement. 
 
Violations of this ordinance shall be treated as a strict liability offense regardless of intent.  
Violations of this ordinance may be enforced as allowed in Chapter 24, Property Maintenance, of 
the City of Farmington Code of Ordinances.  Alternatively, at the sole discretion of the City, the 
City may issue to the beneficiary/trustee/owner and/or owner of record a Notice to Abate.  The 
Notice to Abate shall include: 
 
 (1) The nature and location of the violation; 

(2) The time within which the violation must be abated; 
(3) Notice that the City may act to abate the violation if it is not abated by the owner 

within a reasonable time stated in the Notice, but which may not exceed fifteen 
(15) days; 

(4) Notice that the cost of such action by the City, plus an administrative fee, shall be 
a personal debt of the owner, which may be assessed as a lien against the property 
until paid; and 

(5) Notice that any refusal to allow the City to abate an uncorrected violation shall be 
a separate violation under this Code. 

 
Section 19-210. Authorization for City Abatement. 
 
Upon failure of a beneficiary/trustee/owner and/or owner of record to abate a violation as 
ordered in a Notice to Abate, the City may abate the nuisance.  This abatement may be 
performed by the City, by a contract vendor, or by other means determined by the City. 
 
 

 6



 
 
Section 19-211. Administrative Fees. 
 
The fees necessary for the administration of this Article and authorized by Section 19-213 shall 
be established from time to time by resolution of the City Council.  Such administrative fees 
shall include the following: 
 
 (1) Notice to Abate; 
 (2) Search Warrant; 
 (3) Contact Request or Warning of Abatement Action; 
 (4) Warning Letter; 
 (5) Civil Infraction Preparation; 
 (6) Additional Inspections; 
 (7) Vendoring; 
 (8) Second and Subsequent Vendoring; 
 (9) Vehicle Removal; 
 (10) Second and Subsequent Vehicle Removal; and 
 (11) Denied Entry. 
 
Section 19-212. Charge to Owner. 
 
When the City has abated a cited nuisance, the cost of abatement, plus any applicable 
administrative charges as established by City Council resolution, shall be billed to the property 
owner.  Such billing shall be a personal debt of the owner to the City, which may be assessed as 
a lien against the property, including interest thereon, until paid. 
 
Section 19-213. Appeals. 
 
Any person aggrieved by any of the requirements of this section may appeal to the City Council 
of the City of Farmington, provided that a written application for appeal is filed within 20 days 
after the day the decision, notice, or order was served.  An application for appeal shall be based 
on a claim that the true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been 
incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully apply, the requirements of this 
code are adequately satisfied by other means, or the strict application of any requirement of this 
code would cause an undo hardship. 
 
Section 19-214. Penalty. 
 
Violation of this Article is a civil infraction. 

Section 2 of Ordinance 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 7



Section 3 of Ordinance 
 
That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, 
held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance.  The City hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each 
section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional. 

Section 4 of Ordinance 
 
That nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any 
court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 
existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor 
shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this 
ordinance. 

Section 5 of Ordinance 
 
That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be published in a 
newspaper in general circulation in the City.   

Section 6 of Ordinance 
 
That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders and matters 
established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect upon publication. 
 
Motion by Councilmember McShane, seconded by Councilmember Wiggins. 
 
Ayes:  Knol, McShane, Wiggins, Wright, Buck. 
Nays:  None. 
Abstentions: None. 
Absent: None. 
 
 MADE, PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FARMINGTON, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, ON THE 6th DAY OF APRIL, 2009. 
 
       CITY OF FARMINGTON 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       VALERIE S. KNOL, Mayor 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       SUSAN K. HALBERSTADT, Clerk 
 

 8



 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )  ss. 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Farmington, 
Oakland County, Michigan, do certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of 
the Ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Farmington at a meeting held 
on the 6th day of April 2009, the original of which is on file in my office. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       SUSAN K. HALBERSTADT, City Clerk 
       City of Farmington 
 
 
 
 
Re-Introduced: March 16, 2009 
Adopted:  April 6, 2009 
Published:  April 12, 2009 Farmington Observer 
Effective:  April 16, 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 9



 

 
 
May 8, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Tree Ordinance:  Private Property Issues 
 
 
The infestation of the Emerald Ash Borer has caused most ash trees in the city to die.  City owned 
ash trees have been removed, however many ash trees on private property have not been removed.  
Property owners contact the Parks and Recreation department frequently (5-10 calls/week) asking 
the city to intercede to require the adjacent property owner to remove dead trees.  The tree ordinance 
gives authority and duty to order removal on private property necessary for public safety or to prevent 
spread of disease or insects to public trees or places.  If the fall line of a tree intersects the Right of 
Way and there is a danger to public property, we have the authority to order removal. There is no 
provision in the ordinance to order removal when the tree is a hazard to adjoining property unless that 
adjacent property is publicly owned.  If a tree does fall on private property due to disease or other 
means, the Property Maintenance Code does require that the property owner remove the debris. 
 
Mt. Clemens, Ann Arbor, and Lapeer have ordinance language similar to Troy.  Novi requires 
property owners to maintain trees so that they do not become a danger to the public or adjacent 
property owners.  The city of Southfield ordinance is similar to the Novi language however, they have 
available a loan program which offers residents the option of a low-interest loan to finance removal of 
trees under the ordinance.   
 
Should the ordinance be changed whereby the city would have authority to require removal of trees 
on private property, it is estimated that a minimum of 520 hours/year of staff time (25% of one full 
time equivalent) would be spent doing this enforcement work.  This estimate is based on current 
complaints and does not include inspection based enforcement.   
 
The issue has economic implications for both property owners and the City.  Property owners with 
dead trees must bear the cost of removal.  Adjacent property owners may incur costs if damage 
occurs as a result of a tree falling onto their property.  There will be costs associated with this work if 
the City begins inspecting trees and ordering removal of private property trees.   
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-03



Adding additional services given the budget constraints and reduction of staff is not recommended.  
Absent further direction, staff will proceed as current policy dictates.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Laura Balyeat 



campbellld
Text Box



campbellld
Text Box



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – ROUGH –  
APRIL 1, 2009 
 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, April 1, 2009 in the lower level Conference Room at City Hall. Done 
called the meeting to order at 7:11 p.m.                                        
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan   M. Chaffee      
   D. Chong, student  A. Done 
   B. Harrell   E.  Kempen  
   L. Patton       
        
Present: Mitchell Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: Kelly Clark   
   Paul Chu Lin 
   Kristin Mayer   
   Jeffrey Stewart    
   Anita Vasudevan, student 
   Michael Wilson 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF FEBRUA RY 4, 2009 
Patton made a motion to approve the minutes of February 4, 2009; supported by 
Kempen; all voted in favor.  
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Brent Savidant, Planning Commission, met with members on March 4 and requested 
that this Committee have a couple of volunteers attend the Planning Commission 
seminar to submit ideas for the rewrite of Chapter 39, Zoning Ordinance.  Patton and 
Chaffee volunteered.  Grusnick will obtain copies of Chapter 39 for them to study.  
Brent also suggested that this Committee have an assignment of 1 or 2 members to 
make monthly contact with the Planning Commission to review new site plan submittals.  
Mitch will check into the possibility of bringing newly submitted plans to the ACPD 
meeting for this Committee to review. 
 
ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS 
Buchanan will draft a new commendation letter to be used by this Committee and bring 
to the next meeting.  Grusnick will also bring in previously sent letters to review. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – ROUGH –  
APRIL 1, 2009 
 

 2

ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Done contacted Bob Burke regarding Troy Daze.  He will contact her in May to inform 
 us where the booth or table will be located. 
 
Done will contact Cathy Russ, Library Director, to thank her for her work in planning four 
additional  handicap parking spaces for the Library parking lot. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Done adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                            Angela Done, Chairperson                    
                 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                                                   
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 1, 2009 
 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, April 1, 2009 in the lower level Conference Room at City Hall. Done 
called the meeting to order at 7:11 p.m.                                        
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan   M. Chaffee      
   D. Chong, student  A. Done 
   B. Harrell   E.  Kempen  
   L. Patton       
        
Present: Mitchell Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: Kelly Clark   
   Paul Chu Lin 
   Kristin Mayer   
   Jeffrey Stewart    
   Anita Vasudevan, student 
   Michael Wilson 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF FEBRUA RY 4, 2009 
Patton made a motion to approve the minutes of February 4, 2009; supported by 
Kempen; all voted in favor.  
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Brent Savidant, Planning Commission, met with members on March 4 and requested 
that this Committee have a couple of volunteers attend the Planning Commission 
seminar to submit ideas for the rewrite of Chapter 39, Zoning Ordinance.  Patton and 
Chaffee volunteered.  Grusnick will obtain copies of Chapter 39 for them to study.  
Brent also suggested that this Committee have an assignment of 1 or 2 members to 
make monthly contact with the Planning Commission to review new site plan submittals.  
Mitch will check into the possibility of bringing newly submitted plans to the ACPD 
meeting for this Committee to review. 
 
ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS 
Buchanan will draft a new commendation letter to be used by this Committee and bring 
to the next meeting.  Grusnick will also bring in previously sent letters to review. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 1, 2009 
 

 2

ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Done contacted Bob Burke regarding Troy Daze.  He will contact her in May to inform 
 us where the booth or table will be located. 
 
Done will contact Cathy Russ, Library Director, to thank her for her work in planning four 
additional handicap parking spaces for the Library parking lot. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Done adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                           Cynthia Buchanan, Member                    
                 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                                                   
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 2, 2009 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
April 2, 2009 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:02PM. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member   
 Frank Shier, Member   
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 Betty Coven, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Excused: None 
   
Visitors:  None 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2009-04-001 
Moved by Rhoads 
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of March 5, 2009 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 9  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Suggestion Box:  There were no suggestions. 
 
Election of Officers and Recommendation for Park Board Representative:   
 
Resolution # SC-2009-4-002 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 2, 2009 

2 

Moved by Shier 
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED That David Ogg was elected Chair. 
Yes: 9       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # SC-2009-4-003 
Moved by Shier 
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED That Jo Rhoads was elected as Vice Chair 
 
Yes: 9       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # SC-2009-4-003 
Moved by Noce 
Seconded by Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED That JoAnn Thompson was recommended for appointment to the Park Board 
 
Yes: 9       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
   
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that Signature Reverse Mortgage Company donated a Wii 
game system that the seniors can check out and use at the Community Center.  There is one 
person signed up for the shuffleboard league and two for the bocce league.  Carla will double 
check to see that the instructions for checking out the equipment is posted by the courts. More 
publicity will be done for the leagues.  Lynn was laid off and Carla and Elaine are picking up 
her program responsibilities.  The only program of Lynn’s that has been dropped is the walking 
club due to lack of participation.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have a gold party fund raiser coming up April 17 and 
18. 
 
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a speaker from Catholic Social Services. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 2, 2009 

3 

Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are discussing 
topics for the upcoming legislative breakfast. 
 
Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:55 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL APRIL 28, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on April 28, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Donald Edmunds 
Mark Maxwell  Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz  Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Edmunds is attending the American Planning Association (APA) National 
Conference. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-04-037 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-04-038 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 7, 2009 Special/Study meeting 
and the April 14, 2009 Regular meeting as submitted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL APRIL 28, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Ullmann reported on the April 21, 2009 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting.  
He specifically addressed the application by Sonic Restaurant for six variances (all 
denied), a variance by Ocean Prime to construct their outdoor seating area within 
the required front yard setback (approved) and a commercial vehicle appeal for a 
van in a residential neighborhood (approved).   
 
There was discussion about the disconnect between the Planning Commission and 
BZA on some items.  A joint future meeting was suggested, including discussing 
concrete examples of projects where there was a disconnect. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the April DDA meeting was cancelled. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller discussed the Sonic Restaurant item and how it is intended that it go 
before the Planning Commission for discussion. 
 
Mr. Branigan discussed the Rapid Energy Assessment Process program that 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. puts on as a result of the funding provided under 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 238) - Social Service Agencies 

in M-1 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the item. 
 
Chairman Schultz opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chairman Schultz closed the Public Hearing. 
 
There was some general discussion on the item. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL APRIL 28, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-04-039 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends approval of 
ZOTA 238 to City Council.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
9. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD–10) – BBK Mixed Use Project – Northeast 

corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned PUD-10 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the item. 
 
Ryan Marsh, 32121 Woodward, Royal Oak, MI, the applicant, summarized the need 
for the revision to the Preliminary Development Plan.  In his attempt to secure 
landscape easements from residential neighbors to the north, so landscaping could 
be installed on neighboring properties, one of the residents preferred a fence over a 
6-foot high masonry wall. 
 
Mr. Forsyth reminded the Planning Commission that the PUD Agreement requires 
that the landscaping along the northern property line be installed when the retail 
phase is constructed. 
 
Jerry Savel, 466 Langston, explained his desire for a fence over a wall (1) tunnel 
effect of wind and increased temperatures (2) desire to see proposed landscaping 
in northeast corner of PUD (3) aesthetics of fence over a wall.  He stated the 
neighbor to the west plans to move and has no preference of a fence or wall.   
 
The Planning Commission gave design direction as follows: 
 

 The wall shall be constructed of masonry brick, not poured concrete or 
concrete block. 

 Approximately ten (10’) to twelve (12’) foot maximum sections of fence 
connecting to masonry brick piers. 

 There shall be consistency in design between the fence, brick piers and brick 
wall. 

 The transition from wall to fence shall be at either the northern or southern 
corner of the “jog” in the property line. 

 Shrubs to be evergreen and 3’ to 4’ in height. 

 Details to be provided on site plan. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAUSTUDY MEETING FINAL 	 APRil 28, 2009 

10. 	 T-MOBILE WIRELESS FACILITY AT TROY BOWLING 

Mr. Miller introduced the item. 

Wally Haley, Attorney for T-Mobile, summarized the item and the need for coverage 
in this area. He stated the tower will be 125' in height. 


Mr. Wally indicated AT&T has already indicated they wish to collocate on the tower. 


Mr. Haley suggested the Planning Commission look at an existing tower near the 

intersection of Quarton and Woodward. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

11. 	 PUBLIC COMMENT Items on Current Agenda 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 

12. 	 PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

There were general comments. 

ADJOURN 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

? 

..-.,r~cJ!Lw 
Robert M. Schultz; Chair 

G:\Plannfng Commission Minutes\20Q9 PC Minutes\Flnal\04-28..Q9 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 

- 4 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:33 p.m. on May 5, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested that Agenda items #5, #6 and #7 be stricken from the agenda 
because the items were addressed at a previous meeting.   
 
Resolution # PC-2009-05-040 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES – April 28, 2009 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Mr. Edmunds requested the minutes reflect he was absent from the meeting 
because he attended the American Planning Association (APA) National 
Conference. 
 
Mr. Tagle requested two bullet points be revised under Agenda item #9, page 3, to 
read as follows:   
 Approximately ten (10’) to twelve (12’) foot maximum sections of fence 

connecting to masonry brick piers. 
 There shall be consistency in design between the fence, brick piers and brick 

wall. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-05-041 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 28, 2009 Special/Study meeting 
as revised.   
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Schultz, Tagle, Ullmann 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. POTENTIAL REZONING – 34613 Dequindre Road 

 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed the subject parcel: 

 Southwest corner of Dequindre and Iowa, Section 36. 

 Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential). 

 Approximate one-third acre in size. 

 Surrounding zoning. 

 Master Plan Neighborhood Node. 
 
The property owner, Luziana Shtylla of 34613 Dequindre Road, Troy, was present.  
Ms. Shtylla shared her interest in selling the property for potential commercial 
development. 
 
After a brief discussion, members concurred, as follows: 

 A flat rezoning to commercial would not be favorable. 

 A Conditional Rezoning would be considered. 

 Intent of use should be determined. 

 Assemblage of parcels strongly recommended. 

 Assure compatibility with surrounding uses and Master Plan neighborhood 
node. 

 Property owner is encouraged to seek professional assistance with future 
submission/application. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

9. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 366) – Proposed Sonic Restaurant, East side of 
John R, North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 36, H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the status of the proposed Sonic Restaurant.  Mr. Miller 
said the Planning Department has not reviewed the revised site plan that was 
distributed to members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  He said the 
petitioner is present to discuss the revisions made to the site plan and would 
welcome input from the Planning Commission. 
 
Jim Butler of Professional Engineering Associates (PEA), 2430 Rochester Court, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Butler provided a review of the site plan application from its 
inception of rezoning to H-S (Highway Service) through the April 21, 2009 Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting, in which six variances were denied. 
 
Mr. Butler said the BZA denied the variances because of concerns relating to traffic, 
access on John R and the number of variances requested.  Mr. Butler said the 
newly revised site plan eliminates the need for three variances as relates to 
landscaping, stacking spaces, and rear yard setback.  He indicated their intent to go 
before the BZA with three variance requests with the newly revised site plan.  The 
variances relate to:  1) lane width; 2) front yard setback for canopy; and 3) greenbelt 
encroachment. 
 
Mr. Butler addressed the following: 

 Site configuration and size. 

 Traffic study conducted by Wells & Associates. 

 Taper lane and deceleration lane.  Oakland County Road Commission (OCRC) 
provided a written statement confirming deceleration lane is not required. 

 Access on John R. 

 Landscaping (exceeds Zoning Ordinance requirement). 
 
Mr. Butler displayed several renderings of the proposed restaurant. 
 
A brief question and answer period followed. 
 
Mr. Forsyth addressed the County’s jurisdiction of John R Road. 
 
Bob Middleton, a local Real Estate/Finance representative of Sonic Restaurant, 
1044 River Mist, Rochester, was present.  Mr. Middleton said Sonic is very 
committed to locating one of their restaurants in Troy.  Mr. Middleton addressed the 
challenging site layout, a typical restaurant opening, traffic, safety concerns, and 
John R access as relates to safety and revenues.  He specifically addressed traffic 
management during a restaurant opening, to which he relates is “down to a science” 
after opening 3,000 Sonic Restaurants.  Traffic would be directed to three holding 
areas and the retail plaza parking spaces to the east would be utilized.  After two 
months of operation, Mr. Middleton said store sales drop dramatically and the 
restaurant operation is similar to a typical restaurant operation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Ben Cheshire, local Sonic Restaurant Operator/Trainer, 5388 Ridge Court, Troy, 
was also present.  
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Curb cut on John R with exit to the north only. 

 One-way -vs- two-way traffic onto John R. 

 Utilization of mall service drives in lieu of John R. 

 Bypass lane for drive-through. 

 Providing landscaping on County right of way. 

 Overrun of cars/traffic. 
 
Mr. Butler said they would like to resubmit the revised site plan to the Planning 
Department for the June 9, 2009 Regular Planning Commission meeting and go 
before the BZA with the requested variances at their June 16, 2009 meeting. 
 
Direction from the Planning Commission: 

 General support of the revised site plan. 

 Concerns remain on John R access, deceleration lane and interior driveway. 

 General acceptance of requested BZA variances. 
 
 

10. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Review of 
Intent and Use – Residential Districts 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. reviewed the establishment of 
districts and specifically the intent and use of the following residential districts: 

 Single-family Residential Districts (R-1A through R-1E) 

 Townhouse Residential District (R-1T) 

 Multiple Family Residential (R-M) 

 Urban Residential (R-U) 
 
General discussion and comments followed. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Edmunds expressed appreciation in having the opportunity to attend the American 
Planning Association National Conference in Minneapolis, Minnesota.  He was 
impressed with their regional transit plan, parks and trails, and public art.  Mr. 
Edmunds distributed handouts and said photographs and an audio slide presentation 
would be available soon.  
 
Mr. Strat attended an American Institute of Architects (AIA) seminar on form based 
code. 
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the digital submission of Planning Commission agenda 
meeting packets.  He suggested that the Agenda be provided in Word format and the 
PDF document formatted for easier reference and printing.  
 
Mr. Savidant said there has been a positive response from petitioners submitting 
applications digitally. 
 
Mr. Miller said a future study meeting would be dedicated to the Zoning Ordinance 
rewrite.  He also indicated that Richard Carlisle is working on BZA standards and 
would most likely have a draft document for review soon.  
 
Mr. Miller said Members Hutson and Strat, as well as Mr. Savidant and himself would 
be attending Session 201 of the Form Base Code training in Lansing on May 18-19. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed a meeting he had with the Acting City Manager as relates to 
Planning Commission matters.   
 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:43 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\05-05-09 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:33 p.m. on May 5, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested that Agenda items #5, #6 and #7 be stricken from the agenda 
because the items were addressed at a previous meeting.   
 
Resolution # PC-2009-05-040 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES – April 28, 2009 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Mr. Edmunds requested the minutes reflect he was absent from the meeting 
because he attended the American Planning Association (APA) National 
Conference. 
 
Mr. Tagle requested two bullet points be revised under Agenda item #9, page 3, to 
read as follows:   
 Approximately ten (10’) to twelve (12’) foot maximum sections of fence 

connecting to masonry brick piers. 
 There shall be consistency in design between the fence, brick piers and brick 

wall. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-05-041 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 28, 2009 Special/Study meeting 
as revised.   
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Schultz, Tagle, Ullmann 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent: Maxwell, Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. POTENTIAL REZONING – 34613 Dequindre Road 

 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed the subject parcel: 

 Southwest corner of Dequindre and Iowa, Section 36. 

 Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential). 

 Approximate one-third acre in size. 

 Surrounding zoning. 

 Master Plan Neighborhood Node. 
 
The property owner, Luziana Shtylla of 34613 Dequindre Road, Troy, was present.  
Ms. Shtylla shared her interest in selling the property for potential commercial 
development. 
 
After a brief discussion, members concurred, as follows: 

 A flat rezoning to commercial would not be favorable. 

 A Conditional Rezoning would be considered. 

 Intent of use should be determined. 

 Assemblage of parcels strongly recommended. 

 Assure compatibility with surrounding uses and Master Plan neighborhood 
node. 

 Property owner is encouraged to seek professional assistance with future 
submission/application. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

9. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 366) – Proposed Sonic Restaurant, East side of 
John R, North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 36, H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the status of the proposed Sonic Restaurant.  Mr. Miller 
said the Planning Department has not reviewed the revised site plan that was 
distributed to members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  He said the 
petitioner is present to discuss the revisions made to the site plan and would 
welcome input from the Planning Commission. 
 
Jim Butler of Professional Engineering Associates (PEA), 2430 Rochester Court, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Butler provided a review of the site plan application from its 
inception of rezoning to H-S (Highway Service) through the April 21, 2009 Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting, in which six variances were denied. 
 
Mr. Butler said the BZA denied the variances because of concerns relating to traffic, 
access on John R and the number of variances requested.  Mr. Butler said the 
newly revised site plan eliminates the need for three variances as relates to 
landscaping, stacking spaces, and rear yard setback.  He indicated their intent to go 
before the BZA with three variance requests with the newly revised site plan.  The 
variances relate to:  1) lane width; 2) front yard setback for canopy; and 3) greenbelt 
encroachment. 
 
Mr. Butler addressed the following: 

 Site configuration and size. 

 Traffic study conducted by Wells & Associates. 

 Taper lane and deceleration lane.  Oakland County Road Commission (OCRC) 
provided a written statement confirming deceleration lane is not required. 

 Access on John R. 

 Landscaping (exceeds Zoning Ordinance requirement). 
 
Mr. Butler displayed several renderings of the proposed restaurant. 
 
A brief question and answer period followed. 
 
Mr. Forsyth addressed the County’s jurisdiction of John R Road. 
 
Bob Middleton, a local Real Estate/Finance representative of Sonic Restaurant, 
1044 River Mist, Rochester, was present.  Mr. Middleton said Sonic is very 
committed to locating one of their restaurants in Troy.  Mr. Middleton addressed the 
challenging site layout, a typical restaurant opening, traffic, safety concerns, and 
John R access as relates to safety and revenues.  He specifically addressed traffic 
management during a restaurant opening, to which he relates is “down to a science” 
after opening 3,000 Sonic Restaurants.  Traffic would be directed to three holding 
areas and the retail plaza parking spaces to the east would be utilized.  After two 
months of operation, Mr. Middleton said store sales drop dramatically and the 
restaurant operation is similar to a typical restaurant operation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 5, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Ben Cheshire, local Sonic Restaurant Operator/Trainer, 5388 Ridge Court, Troy, 
was also present.  
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Curb cut on John R with exit to the north only. 

 One-way -vs- two-way traffic onto John R. 

 Utilization of mall service drives in lieu of John R. 

 Bypass lane for drive-through. 

 Providing landscaping on County right of way. 

 Overrun of cars/traffic. 
 
Mr. Butler said they would like to resubmit the revised site plan to the Planning 
Department for the June 9, 2009 Regular Planning Commission meeting and go 
before the BZA with the requested variances at their June 16, 2009 meeting. 
 
Direction from the Planning Commission: 

 General support of the revised site plan. 

 Concerns remain on John R access, deceleration lane and interior driveway. 

 General acceptance of requested BZA variances. 
 
 

10. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Review of 
Intent and Use – Residential Districts 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. reviewed the establishment of 
districts and specifically the intent and use of the following residential districts: 

 Single-family Residential Districts (R-1A through R-1E) 

 Townhouse Residential District (R-1T) 

 Multiple Family Residential (R-M) 

 Urban Residential (R-U) 
 
General discussion and comments followed. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAUSTUDY MEETING - FINAL MAY 5, 2009 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

Mr. Edmunds expressed appreciation in having the opportunity to attend the American 
Planning Association National Conference in Minneapolis, Minnesota. He was 
impressed with their regional transit plan, parks and trails, and public art. Mr. 
Edmunds distributed handouts and said photographs and an audio slide presentation 
would be available soon. 

Mr. Strat attended an American Institute of Architects (AlA) seminar on form based 
code. 

Mr. Hutson addressed the digital submission of Planning Commission agenda 
meeting packets. He suggested that the Agenda be provided in Word format and the 
PDF document formatted for easier reference and printing. 

Mr. Savidant said there has been a positive response from petitioners submitting 
applications digitally. 

Mr. Miller said a future study meeting would be dedicated to the Zoning Ordinance 
rewrite. He also indicated that Richard Carlisle is working on BZA standards and 
would most likely have a draft document for review soon. 

Mr. Miller said Members Hutson and Strat, as well as Mr. Savidant and himself would 
be attending Session 201 of the Form Base Code training in LanSing on May 18-19. 

Chair Schultz addressed a meeting he had with the Acting City Manager as relates to 
Planning Commission matters. 

ADJOURN 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:43 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kathy L. Ciarnecki U 
G:\Planning Commission Mfnutes\2009 PC Minutes\Ffnal\Q5-05-09 Special Study Meeting_FioaLdoc 

5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to 
order at 8:32 A.M. on Wednesday, May 6, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Keith Lenderman 
   Tim Richnak 
   Mark Stimac 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 

Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF April 1, 2009 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 1, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WARREN EMERSON, SMART, 2021 BARRETT, 
for relief of Chapter 83 to install new fencing at the SMART facility on Barrett. 
 
Mr. Dziurman indicated that the Board had received a letter from the petitioner asking 
that this request be postponed until the meeting of June 3, 2009. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Warren Emerson, Smart, 2021 Barrett, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install new fencing at the SMART facility on Barrett until the meeting of 
June 3, 2009. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL JUNE 3, 2009 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHNSON SIGN COMPANY, 150 – 250 & 350 
STEPHENSON, for relief to maintain a ground sign with tenant identification where such 
signs were prohibited by a condition of a variance. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief to maintain an existing 
ground sign with the name of each tenant listed on this sign.  On November 7, 2007, 
this Board granted a variance for a wall sign at 150 Stephenson with the stipulation that 
there would not be any ground signs identifying the business.  However, the petitioner 
had already obtained a permit which included the tenant’s name as part of a ground 
sign. 
 
On June 4, 2008 this Board granted a sign variance at 250 Stephenson with the 
stipulations that there would not be any ground signs identifying the business. 
 
On May 7, 2008 this Board granted a sign variance at 350 Stephenson with the 
stipulation that there would not be any other signs at this location. 
 
The tenant’s names for 250 and 350 Stephenson were added to the ground sign as a 
“face change” not requiring a sign permit. 
 
Mr. Jay Johnson of Johnson Sign Company was present as well as representatives 
from the businesses at these sites.  Mr. Johnson apologized to his clients and stated 
that on the surface it appears as though Mr. Johnson had misled them; however, Mr. 
Johnson said that his company did not do anything to intentionally deceive the City.  All 
of the signs that were installed were done in accordance with the variances received. 
 
Mr. Dziurman questioned the fact that at the meeting of November 7, 2007 it was 
stipulated that a wall sign could be installed as long as there was not ground sign. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that they had obtained a sign permit for a ground sign at the end of 
October 2007 for 250 Stephenson, and did not believe that ground sign applied to 150 
Stephenson.  These buildings are each allowed one wall sign up to 200 square feet, 
and two (2) ground signs.  The ground sign was installed at 250 Stephenson as there is 
only one main entrance from Stephenson and this sign was used as the identification 
sign for this entrance.  The monument ground sign was installed on December 28, 
2007. 
 
Mr. Johnson further explained that the question was asked at the meeting of May 7, 
2008 regarding whether or not they would add a ground sign and Mr. Johnson said that 
they did not take this tenant sign into consideration.  Each building is a separate site 
and Mr. Johnson said that he believes each building is allowed a ground sign.  They did 
not plan to add a separate ground sign for each location.  Mr. Johnson also stated that 
he did not remember any discussion that states they could not have a ground sign.  The 
ground sign was already installed. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the minutes of the meeting of November 7, 2007 indicate that Mr. 
Lyng stated that only addresses were to be displayed on the ground sign. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that two (2) representatives from Valeo were present and they all 
assumed that the Board was addressing a 36 square foot sign at the entrance of this 
building which was never installed.  They only wanted a directional sign that would 
direct people to their building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the petitioner was asking for at the meeting of November 
2007. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that they wanted four (4) wall signs where the Ordinance only 
allows for one (1) wall sign. 
 
Ron Floyd of Valeo, 150 Stephenson was present and stated that they were allowed 
436 square feet of signage and they were going to put up signs that totaled less than 
400 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if each building is allowed 436 square feet of signage the total 
allowable square footage would be 1308 square feet total for all three buildings.  Mr. 
Stimac asked how much square footage of signage was at this site. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he had no idea as he had never added the square footage up. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that his calculations, based upon the minutes, indicate that right now 
they have 1338 square footage of signage at this site, which is more than what is 
allowable by Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Dziurman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked what the size of each individual panel was on the existing ground 
sign.   
 
Mr. Johnson said that each one was approximately 14.67” x 116”, which is about 11.8 
square feet of copy for each of the tenants on the sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that overall the panels are about twelve (12) square feet. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how important it was to have the tenants’ names on the panels 
since there are existing wall signs. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that they were trying to avoid sign clutter by putting a sign on the 
building rather than separate ground signs.  Mr. Johnson said that they thought they  
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
had done everything they were approved to do.  Instead of a bunch of pole signs and 
ground signs, they went from six (6) ground signs to one. 
 
Mr. Don Voyles, 350 Stephenson, Kostal of North America was present and stated that 
at the time they moved into this location the ground sign was already in place.  The wall 
signs are 115 square feet and Mr. Voyles stated that if the names of the tenants could 
remain it would be very helpful.  The second entrance to this site is farther up 
Stephenson. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that Johnson Sign Company took out a permit for the ground sign 
and misinterpreted the intentions of the Board when it was determined that no ground 
signs would be allowed. 
 
Mr. Howard Morok, 250 Stephenson, North American Bancard, was present and stated 
that they had received the variance for their building in the summer of 2008.  Mr. Morok 
stated that he did not believe there were discussions of any substance at all regarding 
the square footage of what would be allowed.  The monument sign is in place and there 
have been plenty of opportunities to address that sign at the time the variance was 
requested.  Originally this was a single-tenant site and now there are three (3) separate 
tenants.  Mr. Morok does not believe this is an unreasonable request. 
 
Mr. Lenderman stated that apparently there were permitted and installed signs in place 
when the petitioners came to the Board and asked for variances.  In November 2007 
they were told there were to be no ground signs with names on them.  Mr. Lenderman 
also asked if everything that has been installed was approved. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct although at the meeting of November 2007, it was with 
the stipulation that there would not be any ground signs. 
 
Mr. Lenderman stated that he did not feel that the petitioner had attempted to deceive 
the City in any way and asked how this item came before the Board. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that a member of the Board had brought this to his attention.  At the 
meeting of February 4, 2009 it was determined that the existing monument sign was 
prohibited by the variances granted. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that this particular Board member may have approved the request 
for a variance for a wall sign based on the fact that there were not going to be any 
ground signs.  Obviously there is a concern that this was misunderstood and the Board 
wants to be fair on the previous decisions made. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the existing ground sign this Board is talking about is very small.   
The panel size is based on the size of the tenant that goes in.  If one of these tenants 
were to leave the Board could place a condition on the variance that any new tenant  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
name would be limited to not more than 12 square feet per panel.  The sign is more 
directional in nature rather than advertisement.  The additional four (4) square feet is not 
a significant detriment to the City. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Lenderman 
 
MOVED, to grant Johnson Sign Company, 150, 250 & 350 Stephenson relief of Chapter 
85 to maintain a ground sign with tenant identification. 
 

• Tenant names are to be limited to 12 square feet. 
• Total signage on site is not to exceed 1338 square feet. 
• No additional signs may be added without a variance. 
• No other ground signs will be allowed. 
• Signs will not be in conflict with Chapter 2 of the City Ordinance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHNSON SIGN COMPANY, 3801 
ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to relocate an existing 20’ tall sign 
setback 13’ from the front property line where the Section 85.02.05 of the Sign 
Ordinance would require a 20’ setback for a sign of this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
relocate the existing 20’ tall, 100 square foot ground sign at 3801 Rochester to a 
location that will be setback 13’ from the front property line.  The sign is being relocated 
as part of the Rochester Road widening project.  Chapter 85, Table 85.02.05 requires 
signs 100 square feet in area to be setback at least 20’ from the front property line. 
 
Mr. Jay Johnson of Johnson Sign Company and Jamie Brown of Uncle Ed’s Oil Shop 
were present and stated that customers enter this location from the back of the building.  
They do not want the sign to interfere with higher profile vehicles and they are asking to 
move the existing sign back. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if when this sign was moved back, the overhang would be over the 
easement. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that it would be 1’ back from the 13’ easement.  Mr. Evans had met 
them on the site to help determine setbacks for this sign. 
 
Mr. Zuazo stated that since there a number of bays on the site one could be designated 
for high profile vehicles. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Brown stated that they have a number of delivery trucks at the site also.  The 
success of this business is based on convenience, “a 10-minute oil change” and when 
they have attempted to designate one bay for a certain vehicle it limits the flexibility of  
getting their customers in and out of the site.  They cannot bring the drive back any 
further and it is a very tight turn.  The sign will not hang over the parking lot. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how far back the sign could be moved. 
 
Ms. Brown said that what they are proposing is as far back as they can put the sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how far back the proposed sign would be from the proposed 
sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the sidewalk will be east of the 12’ utility easement. 
 
Mr. Richnak confirmed that there will be 12’ from the leading edge of the sign to the 
sidewalk and 1’ back from paved surface of driveway. 
 
Mr. Stimac confirmed that this request is only for the relocation of the existing sign. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that was correct and they are considering a changeable copy sign 
underneath the sign. In order to maximize the square footage they would reduce the 
height of the pole.  They would bring it down 2’ and would still have a sign that is 100 
square feet in area, 13’ from the setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the same sign box was going to be used and Mr. Johnson said that 
it was. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Lenderman 
 
MOVED, to grant Johnson Sign Company, 3801 Rochester Road, relief of the Sign 
Ordinance to relocate an existing 20’ tall sign setback 13’ from the front property line 
where Section 85.02.05 of the Sign Ordinance requires a 20’ setback for a sign this 
size. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies to the property described in this petition only. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Lenderman, Richnak, Zuazo 
Abstain: 1 – Stimac 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KATHIE TOMLANOVICH, 2971 BINBROOKE, 
for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence where the Fence Ordinance 
would limit the height to a maximum of 30”. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence.  The property is located at the southeast corner of Binbrooke and 
Adams.  Because of the location of this property and the orientation of the adjacent 
homes, this property is a double front corner lot.  Therefore, it has front yard 
requirements along both Binbrooke and Adams.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences 
in front setbacks on this property to not more than 30 inches.  The permit application 
submitted indicates a 6’ high privacy fence and a portion of 5’ high metal fence setback 
approximately 6’ from the property line along Adams Road. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich was present and stated that she works full time and has two year old 
twins.  Her mother and grandmother provide child care and it is very difficult for them to 
keep up with these children.  Ms. Tomlanovich would like to maximize the use of her 
yard as well as create security and privacy for her family.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the circumstances making this a double front corner lot.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the house to the south fronts on Adams Road which creates 
the double front.  Mr. Stimac stated that in one of the pictures provided by the petitioner 
it appears as though the privacy fence is located right next to the sidewalk, and asked if 
the petitioner wanted her fence this close to the sidewalk. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that the pictured fence is on Wattles and Coolidge and she 
would like to bring her fence back behind the tree line in order to limit visibility along 
Adams Road.  Ms. Tomlanovich also stated that this is a heavily wooded lot and the 
neighbors will not be able to see the fence because of the trees.  The house located 
behind Ms. Tomlanovich is vacant and this fence would not have an impact on that 
property. 
 
Mr. Richnak clarified the amount of fencing that the petitioner was requesting as well as 
the type of materials that would be used.   
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that her neighbors had stated that children go into the woods 
and she is proposing a chain link fence in this area to keep her children out of the 
woods. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak confirmed that the chain link fence at the back of the property would not 
need a variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked about the proposed fence coming from the back corner of the house 
out to the fence along Adams. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that she likes the fact that their yards go together, but is trying 
to build an enclosed area where the children can play and the caregivers won’t have to 
chase them. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if this 60’ fence line is to prevent anyone from leaving the property. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich said that due to the age of the caregivers she has watching her 
children; this area would aid them in not having to chase the children. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked why Ms. Tomlanovich is not proposing to put any fencing along the 
west side of the property. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that she has talked to her neighbor, who also has young 
children, and she was planning to put up a safety gate made of orange mesh in 
between the houses that could be opened and closed rather than have the extra 
expense of more fencing.  The majority of the yard will be fenced in and will provide the 
privacy they are looking for.  The neighbor can see into the main TV room and into their 
kitchen.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked why the fence couldn’t be installed where it complies with the 
Ordinance. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that would block out a portion of the yard and she would like to 
maximize the use of this yard for her children.  If the fence were installed in compliance 
with the Ordinance it would limit the use of the land. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated the fence could be 40’ back which would allow the children to be 
secure in the yard and cut down on the noise.  Mr. Stimac also pointed out that in order 
for a variance to be granted, there has to be a hardship that runs with the land that 
would justify a variance.  The action of the Board is forever and stays with the land 
rather than with the occupants. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that before this meeting she had driven around the area and 
found several addresses that have privacy fences and are on corner lots. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he could understand wanting to create a safe environment for 
her children and asked what the hardship is that would allow a variance.  Mr. Richnak 
also asked if a variance would be required if this was not a corner lot. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

9 
 

 
ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if this was an interior lot a 6’ high fence would be allowed. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that she could make it a 5’ high fence and move the fence back 
5’. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if any part of the fence would be visible. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that this is a very wooded lot and they had been looking at this 
home for six months before they purchased it.  Between the fence line and sidewalk are 
a number of trees and bushes and Ms. Tomlanovich does not believe the fence will be 
visible especially when moved back behind the tree line.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the Board is looking to make decisions within the intent of the 
Ordinance and it is possible that because of the trees the fence may not be able to be 
installed in that area. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich said that she is more than willing to move the fence back 5’ and would 
also be willing to make it a 5’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Zuazo stated that the petitioner wants to install a fence for the sake of keeping her 
children from leaving the property but does not want to install a fence on the other side 
of the property. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich said that she is concerned about the traffic on Adams Road and had 
spoken to her neighbor and they believe that the installation of a temporary fence will 
work. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the 60’ portion of the fence would be temporary or permanent. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich said that it would be a permanent fence with a gate. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked which portion of the fence requires a variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the line of fencing to the west of the front line of the home 
would be limited to not more than 30” in height. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how high the fence would be along Adams. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

10 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner is proposing a 6’ high fence in that area. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that the fence would be 5’ high along the driveway. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the land slopes down toward the house along Adams.  The 
fence would probably appear to be closer to 4’ or 4 ½’ when viewed from the Road. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how much further back the fence would be from Adams. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that it is about 15’ from the sidewalk.  5’ back from the tree line. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that there is heavy brush farther back and it is possible that the 
fence would be more visible. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the petitioner planned to add more landscaping. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that she had thought about adding arborvitae. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he thought the only location that the fence would be visible 
would be in the southwest corner and he feels that two or three arborvitae would limit 
visibility of the fence. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the fence would pose any type of problem with the Fire Department 
and Mr. Lenderman stated that it would not. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the petitioner planned to keep the larger trees and shrubs on the 
property. 
 
Ms. Tomlanovich stated that she did. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to grant Kathie Tomlanovich, 2971 Binbrooke, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
6’ high privacy fence where the Ordinance limits the height of fences in front setbacks to 
not more than 30” in height. 
 

• Fence will be moved back 5’ east of the tree line. 
• Three arborvitae will be planted along the southwest corner of the property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

11 
 

ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  SUNIL BAJAJ, 6074 ATKINS, for relief of the 
2006 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement with a 6’-9 1/2” ceiling height 
where a 7’ minimum ceiling height is required by Section R305 of the Michigan 
Residential Code. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2006 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish a basement that will result in a 6’-9 ½” main ceiling height and 
two drop ceiling areas with 5’-6” and 6’-2” heights.  Section R305 of the 2006 Michigan 
Residential Code requires a 7’ minimum ceiling height in finished basements and 6’-6” 
minimum heights under dropped areas. 
 
Mr. Sunil Bajaj was present and stated that both he and his wife were doctors and have 
lived in Michigan four (4) years.  They would like to use this space as a place to put their 
books and use it as a study room.  Mr. Bajaj’s mother lives with them and this would 
give them the extra space they need. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner had a contractor to do the work. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that they did. 
 
It was explained to the petitioner that usually the contractor appears before the Board 
and the Board can explain to him what conditions would be placed on the variance. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that he believes the maximum height of the basement ceiling is around 7’. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner planned to use this area as living space. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that it would only be used as place to store their books and allow them a 
study.  They also plan to have an egress window added. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the area to the left of the stairway indicates a height of 74” and 
the other area indicates a ceiling height of 83 ½”.  Mr. Stimac asked Mr. Bajaj if the 
transition between the ceiling heights starts on the left hand side of the stairway. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Stimac expressed concern regarding the ceiling height of 66” and stated that the 
drawing indicates that there is a duct there that runs about 1.9” from the wall.  This is a 
very troubling dimension.  Mr. Stimac understands that the duct work is there and stated 
that he thought bookshelves could be put in this area. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said their intention was to put bookshelves in this area so that no one would 
walk into that space. 
 
Mr. Stimac also asked if the drywall was attached directly to the bottom of the joists. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

12 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that there is nothing else attached to the joists but drywall.  Mr. and Mrs. 
Bajaj need a place to work on their daily work from the hospital. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that this request is not unusual and that usually the Board 
recommends in areas where the ceiling height is very low that something else be 
constructed in the space. 
  
Mr. Stimac stated that the plans submitted indicate that the area to the left of the 
stairway has a ceiling height of 74” and a width of 4’-11”.  Mr. Stimac asked what the 
height was from the floor to the bottom of the duct. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that he did not know as this area was covered at the time they moved into 
this house. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if part of this basement was finished. 
 
Mr. Bajaj stated that when they purchased this home the basement was already 
finished. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if they plan to remove the ceiling. 
 
Mr. Bajaj said that they are planning on putting in shelving. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this area could also be used as a closet which would alleviate the 
ceiling problem. 
 
Mr. Richnak agreed that the petitioner may be better off to put in a closet in this area. 
 
Motion by Stimac 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Sunil Bajaj relief of the 2006 Michigan Residential Code to finish a 
basement with a 6’-9 ½” ceiling height where a 7’ minimum ceiling height is required by 
Section R305 of the Michigan Residential Code and also to have two drop ceiling areas 
with 5’-6” and 6’-2” heights where a 6’-6” minimum heights is required.  
 

• A closet will be installed in the area that has a 5’-6” ceiling height. 
• Ceiling should be installed to obtain the maximum height possible. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:10 A.M. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                     MAY 6, 2009 

13 
 

 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 



DATE:        May 1, 2009

TO:             John Szerlag, Acting City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued April 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 2 $69,000.00 $920.00
Parking Lot 1 $75,000.00 $865.00
Repair 1 $12,000.00 $235.00

Sub Total 4 $156,000.00 $2,020.00

COMMERCIAL
Add/Alter 20 $2,156,119.00 $23,410.00

Sub Total 20 $2,156,119.00 $23,410.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 1 $200,000.00 $2,115.00
Add/Alter 16 $358,481.00 $5,010.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 8 $22,508.00 $660.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $34,995.00 $465.00
Repair 3 $13,616.00 $345.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $50.00

Sub Total 30 $629,600.00 $8,645.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Repair 4 $56,657.00 $1,050.00

Sub Total 4 $56,657.00 $1,050.00

MULTIPLE
Repair 1 $6,850.00 $155.00

Sub Total 1 $6,850.00 $155.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 13 $0.00 $1,525.00
Fences 23 $0.00 $375.00

Sub Total 36 $0.00 $1,900.00

TOTAL 95 $3,005,226.00 $37,180.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 179 $1,790.00
Cert. of Occupancy 21 $1,308.00
Plan Review 55 $2,303.75
Microfilm 22 $263.00
Building Permits 95 $37,180.00
Electrical Permits 113 $5,964.00
Heating Permits 77 $3,180.00
Air Cond. Permits 25 $1,010.00
Refrigeration Permits 2 $90.00
Plumbing Permits 69 $3,635.00
Storm Sewer Permits 11 $695.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 6 $188.00
Sewer Taps 3 $258.00

TOTAL 678 $57,864.75

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 20 $100.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 27 $405.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 14 $70.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 5 $50.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 73 $705.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2008 2008 2009 2009

JANUARY 71 $4,678,432.00 66 $5,215,813.00

FEBRUARY 81 $5,464,681.00 39 $2,463,134.00

MARCH 107 $3,480,525.00 76 $3,344,007.00

APRIL 141 $10,518,298.00 95 $3,005,226.00

MAY 161 $4,357,036.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 161 $8,178,329.00 0 $0.00

JULY 160 $10,497,107.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 122 $15,981,779.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 134 $13,136,548.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 114 $3,760,152.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 109 $35,574,774.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 66 $1,762,444.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1427 $117,390,105.00 276 $14,028,180.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

3 3 1
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

0



May 1, 2009 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2009Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter ALLEGHENY DESIGN MANAGEMENT, INC. 470 W FOURTEEN MILE  252,364
Commercial, Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCES, INC. 750 STEPHENSON 500  400,713
Commercial, Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCES, INC. 750 STEPHENSON 700  200,357
Commercial, Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCES, INC. 750 STEPHENSON 600  400,713
Commercial, Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCE, INC 750 STEPHENSON 400  400,713
Commercial, Add/Alter DEJAGER CONSTRUCTION INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER P-135  205,299

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,860,159

Total Valuation:  1,860,159Records  7



 

Wm  o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2009 agendas\2009 ytd crime stat's 1st qtr.doc 

 

 
May 7, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 
 
 
Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing the current 
year’s data to the previous year. This data includes calls for police service, criminal offenses, 
arrests, clearance rates, traffic crashes and citations issued.   The police department data 
reporting complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS).   
 
The first quarter statistics reflect an overall decrease in Group A crimes.  Group A crimes are 
typically the most serious offenses and closely correspond to the categories the FBI uses to 
determine serious crime rates for a community.  Of additional interest are several areas that 
depict increasing trends, specifically drugs/narcotics offenses, drunk driving incidents/arrests, 
and traffic citations. Rising numbers in these categories typically reflect increased found on 
patrol activity by officers engaged in problem solving rather than an underlying increase in 
criminal activity.  Examples would include traffic law enforcement related to accident causing 
behaviors, traffic enforcement at locations with high accident frequencies, responding to traffic 
complaints reported by citizens, detecting and arresting intoxicated drivers, as well as finding 
and taking enforcement actions against persons violating drug/narcotics laws by officers on 
patrol. 
 
 Group A Crime decreased 9.4% (79 incidents) from the 2008 level.  Within the group, the 

following categories show notable variations: 
 Breaking and Entering: Down 50.6% (43 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Down 18.8% (13 incidents) 
 Robbery: Down 42.9% (3 incidents) 
 Assault Offenses:  Up 33.3% (42 incidents) 
 Larceny/Theft Offenses:  Down 7.3% (26 incidents) 
 Drug/Narcotics Offenses: Up 26.7% (12 incidents)  
 Fraud Offenses: Down 12.5% (7 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Down 62.5% (30 incidents) 

 Group B Crime increased 17.8% (46 incidents).  Significant variations from the 2008 levels 
occurred in the following:  
 Drunk Driving: Up 18.7% (17 incidents) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



 

 2 

 Total incidents of crime (Group A & B combined) decreased by 3.0% (46 incidents).   
 
 Clearance rates, the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 

positively identified but not prosecuted, continue to be high: 
 34.7% of reported Group A Crime  
 82.6% of reported Group B Crime 
 49.6% of all reported crime has been cleared   

 Total Arrests increased 11.7% (62 arrests)  
 Group A Crime Arrests:  Increased 6.2% (18 arrests) 
 Group B Crime Arrests:  Increased 18.5% (44 arrests)  

 Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service decreased by 12.1% (1006 incidents).   
 Year to date reported traffic crashes and citations issued are: 
 Property Damage crashes decreased 18.7% (136 crashes) 
 Injury crashes decreased 8.3% (11 crashes) 
 Fatal crashes decreased from 2 to 1 

 Total traffic citations issued increased 21.2% (689 citations):  
 Hazardous traffic citations issued increased 0.6% (15 citations) 
 Non-hazardous citations increased 223.9% (197 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations increased 63.1% (328 citations)     
 Parking citations increased 111.2% (149 citations) 

 Overall crimes and non-criminal calls for police service are down 11.0% (1039 crimes/calls 
for service)   

 



Troy Police Department

1st Quarter 2009/2008 Comparison
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Group A Crime Categories 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 Percent

Arson 1 0         + 1 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Assault Offenses 168 126 33.3% 171 132 29.5% 40 26 53.8% 39 22.8%

Bribery 0 0        NC 0 1         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Breaking and Entering 42 85 -50.6% 43 85 -49.4% 12 7 71.4% 4 9.3%

Counterfeiting/Forgery 10 11 -9.1% 10 11 -9.1% 3 3        NC 2 20.0%

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 56 69 -18.8% 58 75 -22.7% 1 3 -66.7% 2 3.4%

Drug/Narcotic Offenses 57 45 26.7% 92 73 26.0% 72 50 44.0% 88 95.7%

Embezzlement 13 21 -38.1% 13 22 -40.9% 10 17 -41.2% 7 53.8%

Extortion/Blackmail 0 0        NC 0 1         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Fraud Offenses 49 56 -12.5% 51 62 -17.7% 4 13 -69.2% 3 5.9%

Gambling Offenses 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Homicide Offenses 0 1         - 0 2         - 0 2         - 0 0.0%

Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0        NC 2 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Larceny/Theft Offenses 332 358 -7.3% 340 373 -8.8% 158 161 -1.9% 128 37.6%

Motor Vehicle Theft 18 48 -62.5% 18 48 -62.5% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Pornography/Obscene Material 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Prostitution Offenses 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 0.0%

Robbery 4 7 -42.9% 4 7 -42.9% 1 2 -50.0% 1 25.0%

Sex Offenses, Forcible 7 9 -22.2% 7 9 -22.2% 0 2         - 0 0.0%

Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Stolen Property Offenses 2 3 -33.3% 7 4 75.0% 5 2 150.0% 6 85.7%

Weapon Law Violations 4 2 100.0% 5 4 25.0% 3 2 50.0% 5 100.0%

Group A Total 763 842 -9.4% 822 910 -9.7% 309 291 6.2% 285 34.7%

Group B Crime Categories

Bad Checks 17 13 30.8% 17 14 21.4% 3 6 -50.0% 3 17.6%

Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 1 0         + 1 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Disorderly Conduct 25 22 13.6% 30 23 30.4% 6 6        NC 7 23.3%

Driving Under the Influence 108 91 18.7% 128 111 15.3% 111 99 12.1% 124 96.9%

Drunkenness 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Family Offenses, Nonviolent 2 6 -66.7% 2 6 -66.7% 1 0         + 0 0.0%

Liquor Law Violations 12 14 -14.3% 25 32 -21.9% 39 31 25.8% 25 100.0%

Peeping Tom 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 0.0%

Runaway (Under 18) 3 2 50.0% 3 2 50.0% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Trespass of Real Property 6 2 200.0% 6 4 50.0% 2 1 100.0% 2 33.3%

All Other 130 107 21.5% 161 135 19.3% 120 94 27.7% 147 91.3%

Group B Total 304 258 17.8% 373 328 13.7% 282 238 18.5% 308 82.6%

Group A and B Total 1,067 1,100 -3.0% 1,195 1,238 -3.5% 591 529 11.7% 593 49.6%

Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

1st Quarter1st Quarter 1st Quarter 1st Quarter



Troy Police Department
1st Quarter 2009/2008 Comparison

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Description 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 Percent

Alarms 768 846 -9.2% 768 846 -9.2% NA NA NA NA NA

All Other 6,556 7,484 -12.4% 6,673 7,583 -12.0% 134 124 8.1% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 7,324 8,330 -12.1% 7,441 8,429 -11.7% 134 124 8.1% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 13 23 -43.5% 13 23 -43.5% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 8,404 9,453 -11.1% 8,649 9,690 -10.7% 725 653 11.0% 593 49.6%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2009 Alcohol Involved Crashes

Personal Injury 122 133 -8.3% 2 Incidents--1.6% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 591 727 -18.7% 6 Incidents--1.0% involved alcohol.

Fatal 1 2 -50.0% 0 Incidents--0.0% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 714 862 -17.2% 8 Incidents--1.1% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 239 261 -8.4%

Crashes Grand Total 953 1,123 -15.1%

Traffic Citations

Hazardous 2,523 2,508 0.6%

Non-hazardous 285 88 223.9%

License, Title, Registration 848 520 63.1%

Parking 283 134 111.2%

Traffic Citations Total 3,939 3,250 21.2%

1st Quarter 1st Quarter 1st Quarter 1st Quarter



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a





 

 
 
DATE:    March 6, 2009                             
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance and Administration 

Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Non-Profit Group Meeting Room Policy at Community Center 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Under current room usage policy at the Community Center, any 501 (C) non-profit tax exempt 

corporation, community/civic organization, church, fraternal body, educational unit, or government 
organization that consists of at least 75% Troy residents are not charged to use a Community 
Center meeting room during regular business hours (Monday – Friday, 8 am – 10 pm; Saturday 8 
am – 1 pm).  In addition, these groups are not required to pay for use of the audio visual 
equipment and are exempt from the Community Center Food Policy (Exhibit 1).   

 This policy was developed prior to the renovation of the existing Community Center in 2002 when 
the rooms in the facility were not available for rent to the general public and fewer programs were 
offered by the Parks and Recreation Department.  The intent was for non-profit groups to be able 
to use the rooms primarily for monthly meetings. 

 After the renovation was complete and additional rooms were added to the Community Center, 
the total number of reservations increased from 2,116 in 2001-02 to 10,782 in 2007-08.  Of this 
total, 27% were reserved for non-profit groups, 54% for parks and recreation sponsored 
activities/programs and 19% for public groups who pay a rental fee. 

 There are approximately 50 non-profit organizations that reserve rooms under the no fee policy 
(Exhibit 2).   A majority of these groups reserve one or more rooms on a weekly basis and run 
programs that are advertised to be free to their members.  

 Approximately 20 non profit groups (i.e. High School Sport Teams, Scout Groups, Homeowner 
Associations, Ethnic Organizations) hold special events such as banquets and holiday parties for 
no charge despite extensive set up, take down and cleaning that is involved with the event. 

 Due to the quality accommodations that are provided at the Community Center, the quantity of 
non-profit group meetings has increased to the point that it is difficult for new revenue producing 
Parks and Recreation programs or private rentals to find space for their activity at peak times. 

 The cost to provide services and utilities to these non profit groups has increased since the facility 
has opened yet the general fund subsidy to accommodate these groups has remained the same. 

 In order to increase revenue, City Council adopted revenue enhancements on February 16, 2009 
that included the establishment of a room rental fee for non profit groups who stage meetings and 
activities at the Community Center (Resolution #2009-02-045). 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City management has developed a revenue producing fee structure for non profit groups to use 

the Community Center.  Under this new policy, non-profit groups will be limited to one reservation 
per month and be charged $20 per hour (50% of the Troy Business Rate) to reserve space for any 
additional meetings during the month.  This will impact the groups that are listed in Exhibit 2 that 
meet weekly or bi-weekly.  In addition, non profit groups that hold events in Room 304-305 will be 
charged a $30 set up/cleaning fee.  This new fee structure will be implemented at the conclusion 
of the current reservation period (September 1, 2009).  

 As a result of this change, it is anticipated that $27,500 of additional revenue would be earned 
(Exhibit 3). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Kraig Schmottlach, Community Center Facility Manager 



Exhibit 1 

Troy Community Center Food/Beverage Policy 
 

Groups that would like to serve food or beverages at their events in the Troy Community Center have the following 
options: 

1. Order from the Community Center “preferred” caterer(s).  If a qualifying meal is ordered, the group will receive 
a 35% discount on the room rental charges (excluding labor) provided the following minimum conditions are 
met: 
 Qualifying food order must be $5 or more per person  
 Group size of 20 
 Two hour room rental 

 

2. Order from a caterer that is not “preferred”.  Groups may hire another caterer to provide food and beverages 
but are subject to the following charges and conditions: 
 Cleaning Fee ‐ $30 
 Service Fee (per person) ‐ $.75 for breakfast, $1 for lunch, $2 for dinner (There is no service fee if 

beverage or snacks are served) 
 Breakfast items include bagels, muffins and pastries.  Snack foods include pre‐packaged non‐perishable 

items and desserts. 
 Caterer must have valid kitchen license. 
 Caterer or group will not have access to the kitchen area. 

 

3. Carry in food prepared from home, store or restaurant.  Groups, with the exception of non‐profit groups (see 
below) may bring in their own food and beverages but are subject to the following charges and conditions: 
 Cleaning Fee ‐ $30 
 Service Fee (per person) ‐ $.75 for breakfast, $1 for lunch, $2 for dinner (There is no service fee if 

beverage or snacks are served) 
 Breakfast items include bagels, muffins and pastries.  Snack foods include pre‐packaged non‐perishable 

items and desserts. 
 Group will not have access to the kitchen area. 
 The food being served is only available to members of the group.  It cannot be served to the public. 

 

Other Information 
1. Any non‐profit tax exempt (501c) corporations, community/civic organizations, churches, fraternal bodies, 

educational units or government organizations that consist of at least 75% Troy residents in attendance are 
permitted to carry in food prepared from home without incurring the service fee and will be subject to the 
cleaning fee if the room does not pass a post event inspection. 

2. Individuals visiting the Community Center may consume food brought from home or purchased at a restaurant 
without incurring a cleaning fee or service fee as long as the food is not being served for a group function.  For 
example, a patron may eat their individual lunch anywhere in the facility. 

3. The kitchen is not available for use by any group except by a “preferred” caterer who may use it in the process 
of staging their meal. 

 

 

 



Exhibit 2 

The following non‐profit groups meet at the Community Center under the no‐fee policy. 

Groups That Meet Weekly or More (22) 
Troy Noontimers (Alcoholics Anonymous) ‐ Monday, Friday 
Nothin But the Book (Alcoholics Anonymous) – Wednesday 
Al‐Anon (Alcoholics Anonymous) ‐ Friday 
Church in Troy ‐ Monday, Saturday 
Indian Dance Club ‐ Monday, Saturday 
Troy Chinese School ‐ Tuesday, Friday 
ACACAE/CAGD (Chinese Association of Greater Detroit) – Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday, Saturday 
Chinese Dance Club ‐ Thursday 
Michigan Chinese Folk Dance Club ‐ Thursday, Friday 
Performing Arts Club ‐ Wednesday 
Nadanta ‐ Wednesday 
ARC of Oakland County (Weight Watchers for the Disabled) ‐ Thursday 
Wattles Robotics Club ‐ Thursday 
Charity Cup (Religious Group) ‐ Thursday 
Path Bhaban (Bengali Organization) ‐ Friday 
Buddha’s Light International Association ‐ Friday, Saturday 
Girl Scout Troop (Multiple Troops) – Various days 
Waray‐Waray International Organization (Philippine Dance Group)  ‐ Friday 
Falun Dafa (Chinese Meditation Group) ‐ Saturday 
Oriental Art ‐ Saturday 
Hindu Swayamsevak Organization ‐ Saturday 
Mizuno Dance Club – Saturday 
Troy High School Cheerleaders ‐ Monday to Friday 
Troy High School Winterguard – Monday to Friday 
 

Groups That Meet Twice per Month (4) 
Cub Scout Troop (Multiple Groups) – Monday, Wednesday 
Democratic Club ‐ Wednesday 
American Romanian School – Saturday 
 

Groups That Meet Monthly (16) 
AAII Fast Track – Monday 
AAII Fast Track ‐ Tuesday 
Community Chorus ‐ Monday 
Troy Soccer League‐ Monday, Tuesday 
Primrose Garden ‐ Tuesday 
Troy Women’s Association ‐ Tuesday 
Girl Scout Troop – Tuesday, Thursday 
Troy Garden Club ‐Wednesday 
Leadership Troy ‐ Wednesday 
Beachwood Recreation ‐ Wednesday 
Troy Youth Soccer League ‐Thursday 



Troy Newcomers ‐ Thursday 
Senator Pappageorge ‐ Saturday 
Homeowner Associations (Multiple Associations) 
 

Special Events and Banquets in Room 304 ‐ 305 
Troy School Sports Teams Annual Banquet (6) 
Boy Scout Blue and Gold Banquet (3) 
Pine Wood Derby (3) 
Indus Science Fair 
Troy Elementary School Fun Fairs and Dances (6) 
Community Coalition Banquet 

Exhibit 3 
Revenue Projections 

 

New Policy – One reservation per month for no charge, $20 per hour room rental for other reservations, cleaning charge 

Source of New Revenue  Estimated Revenue Calculation  Amount 

Non Profit Groups  10 groups renting space x $40 per meeting x 3 per month x 12 months  $14,400 
Private Rentals  2 new rentals per week x $100 per meeting x 50 weeks  $10,000 
Recreation Programs  1 new program per week x $50 per meeting x 50 weeks  $2,500 
Cleaning Fee  20 banquet events x $30 cleaning fee  $600 
Total Revenue    $27,500 
 

 


	AGENDA: May 18, 2009
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Service Commendation Presented by Mayor Schilling to Linda Thielfoldt – Homes for Our Troops
	Development Plans for the Troy Museum and Historic Village – 10-Minute Presentation by Museum Manager Loraine Campbell


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application – Harlan Shopping Plaza, North Side of Wattles, West of John R, Section 14 – B-1 to B-3 (File Number Z-736)

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:   None Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Historic District Commission; and Historic District Study Committee
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations:  None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations:  Historic District Commission
	E-3 Rescind/Re-Award Contract – Hauling & Disposal, Item #4) Catch Basin Sludge and Street Sweepings – Resolution #2009-04-139-F-4b
	E-4 Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Easement for Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 and Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 and Request for Authori...
	E-5 Approval of the 2009-2010 Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Budget
	E-6 Approval of the 2009-2010 Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Budget
	E-7 Bid Waiver – Troy Community Center Strength Equipment Purchase

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Service Commendation – Homes for Our Troops

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Overhead Door Maintenance and Repair

	F-5 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland County
	F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License Only to Wal-Mart Stores East, Limited Partnership
	F-7 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status – Mark Wolodkowicz, President and Program Director for Free Desire, Inc.
	F-8 Schedule a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 American Public Works Association Voluntary Accreditation
	H-2 City of Farmington – Abandoned Residential Property Registration Ordinance
	H-3 Tree Ordinance – Private Property Issues

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 1, 2009
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 1, 2009
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 2, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 28, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 5, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 5, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 6, 2009

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued April 2009
	Police Department – 2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Commendation to Lt. Dave Livingston from Jon Pascal, Krav Maga Worldwide-Force Training Division Regarding the Professionalism and Commitment of Officer Dan Langbeen

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	J-5 Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding Non-Profit Group Meeting Room Policy at the Community Center

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



